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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

I am pleased to make my first Chairman’s report on the activities of Novera This has been an exciting time to
join the Company Policy inihatives at both European Union (EU) and United Kingdom (UK) tevel are
increasingly positive for renewable power and we are well-positioned to benefit from this

We have established ourselves as a leading independent renewable energy developer and generator in the
UK Qur strategy 1s to build on our established core skills of landfill gas operations and wind development We
will also apply this expertise to potential energy from waste projects We am to grow scale to compete
effectively in the rapidly growing renewables industry We will consider the acquisition of operating assets or
development opportunities that leverage our core skills both in the UK and in selected overseas markets

Operationa! performance improved following the acquisition of the remaining 50 per cent of Novera's joint
venture from Macquare Internationa! Infrastructure Fund (‘Macquane’} at the start of the year Our targeted
operating improvements were delivered in 2007 and have been incorporated in our future plans for the
business On a pro-forma, illustrative basis revenue was up 10 per cent to £34 4 milion {unaudited) driven by
increased generation which was up 3 per cent to 564GWh, and higher unit revenue Statutory revenue was
£32 1 millon The pro forma numbers are explained fully within the Financial Review

We remain confident in cur ability to achieve our target of 250MW of operational wind capacity by 2011 Qur
second wind farm, Lissett Awrfield Wind Farm (‘Lissett’) 1s under construchon A further four planning
apphications representing over 70MW of operational capacity are in the planning process We have 20 sites at
the pre-planning stage with a total potential operational capacity of 320MW  We expect planning decisions on
all four sites whrch are in planning durning the course of 2008

The 10MW East London Sustainable Energy Facility (ELSEF) i1s progressing well We are also engaged in a
number of follow-up projects

Novera Energy Limited was listed on the London Stock Exchange's Alternative Investment Market ('AIM') n
June 2005 May 2007 marked another milestone in the evolution of Novera Energy plc with the
reincorperation of the Company in the UK as Novera Energy plc, the successor entity, which was admitted to
trading on AIM simuitaneously with the re-domicile

Employees

The Group has grown dunng the past year with the workforce now numbering 154 | would like to take this
opportunity to thank the staff for all ther efforts and | anticipate another successful year for them all In
support of our expanding Scottish team and development pipeline, we have opened a Scottish office in
Edinburgh This office 1s in addition to the established corporate headquarters in London, operations centre in
Warrington and Welsh office in Cardiff

Qutlook

The prospects for renewable energy in the UK will be enhanced by the commitment of the EU for renewable
energy to reach 20 per cent of total energy consumption by 2020 The UK's target 1s currently set at 15 per
cent It s widely expected that this wili result in a renewable target of 4045 per cent of total electneity
generation This 1s a substantial increase over the current level of 5 per cent and the current target of 20 per
cent

As announced 17 March 2008, the Company 1s conbnuing negohations with 31 Infrastructure Limited
conceming & possible cash offer for the entire 1Issued share capital of Novera at a prnce of 90 pence per share
We have also received an approach from Infimis Acquisiions Limited  Further announcements will be made
as and when appropnate

Whilst at the time of wnting this report the future ownership of Novera 1s uncertain, the Board remains
confident in the underlying opportunities for renewable energy in the UK and the Novera team’s contnbution to
this exciting sector
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Roy Franklin
Chairman
17 March 2008




OPERATING REVIEW

Novera has made excellent progress during 2007, not only in consolidation of the joint venture
operational assets, but also in developing our wind portfolio

We are also encouraged by the continuing support of the renewables industry from the UK
Government, as reflected In its recent Energy White Paper Particularly welcome are the decisions to
improve the planning process for renewables, to maintain the level of support for onshore wind and to
increase the support for emerging technologies such as gasification

Cperations

Generation

The Key Performance Indicators (‘KPIs’) for our operations, which include power generation, revenue,
costs and gross profit, and are presented on a pro-forma basis as explained fully within the Financial
Review This basis, In the opinion of the directors, provides a more mearnungful analysis of the trends
in the underlying business

During 2007, output increased by 3 per cent from 546GWh to 564GWh (excluding discontinued
operations in 2006)

Power from sites developed under the UK Government's Non Fossil Fuel Obligation (‘'NFFQO')
programme, representing 59 per cent of total generation, 1s sold to the Government’'s Non Fossil
Purchase Agency The remainder of our output i1s eligible for Renewable Obligation Certificates
(‘ROCs’) and 1s sold to energy retallers such as EON and Centrica 90 per cent of Novera's total power
output is sold under long-term contracts

The mamn rnsk areas to our operations relate to performance, health, safety and environmental
standards and the impact of weather and are managed by approprate operational processes

Landfill Gas

At the time that we acquired the remaining 50 per cent of Novera's joint venture from Macquarie we
targeted £06 millon in operating improvements in the first year, with £13 million per annum
thereafter Durning 2007 we made good progress and met our improvement targets The full set of
operating improvements have been included in our 2008 Budget and business plans going forward
These include better management of our external engine maintenance contracts, the optimisation of
engine use to maximise the time between overhauls and the successful re-negotation of lower royalty
payments at two sites

Our landfill gas portfolio generated 487GWh 1n 2007, an increase of 4 per cent from 470GWh in 2006
The increased generation was achieved through a combination of two new developments, which
commenced operation dunng the second half of 2006, the strategic relocation of engines, the dnlling of
additionat wells and improved gas field management

Our operational counterparties are the waste companies with whom we work WRG, Sita, Vindor and
the operations and maintenance providers, Clarke Energy, Finnings and Edina UK

Hydroelectric
The 16MW hydro portfolio across the ten sites performed in-line with 2006, generating 43GWh

Wind
Generation from Mynydd Clogau (15MW) increased by 2 per cent to 28BGWh A potential extension to
the existing site 1s currently under consideration

Industrial and Water Services

Novera 1s the UK’s largest independent operator of sludge drying and dewatering facilites We
manage the operations and maintenance of sludge drying and dewatenng faciities in Cardiff, Newport
and Port Talbet for Kelda Water Services a role we have fulfilled the last nne years Novera also
operates and maintains a major plant in Edinburgh for Veolia Water Services

We also operate one diesel-powered generation 'standby’ site  This does not generate significant
quantities of electncity
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Pre-construction

Wind

We have an established target of 260MW of wind capacity 1n operation by 2011 We establish intenm
targets annually for each stage of the planning process appraisal, pre-planning, sites into planning
and consents Progress against all of these measures i1s tracked by the Company on a monthly basis

For 2007, targets included obtaining planning consent and starting construction for Lissett, and
submitting a further 7O0MW of wind capacity into planning We ended the year with four sites In the
planning process with a potential output in the range of 78-91MW being Mountboy (North East
Scotland), Glenkene (Scottish Borders), A'Chruach (West Scotland), and Fleeter Wood (Cumbria)
We expect planning decisions on all four sites duning the course of 2008 In addition to the long-term
250MW, our targets for 2008 include submitting a further 170MW into planning

We reached financial close on Lissett in November 2007 Construction started in December 2007
Civil works are well underway with some roads and piling of wind turbine bases completed The first
turbines are due on site in October, with first generation planned in December 2008 Qur approach to
development has secured what is probably the shortest programme for a UK wind farm, with only 2 5
years from planning application to the programmed date for first production

Our on-going site search programme 1s delivering good results and we have already identified 20 new
sites with a combined potential capacity of 320MW  With a further potential 270MW of wind capacity
at the appraisal stage, we remain confident that we will deliver our target of having 250MW in
production by the end of 2011

We have expanded the wind development and construction team and further growth 1s planned for
2008

Energy from Waste

Following the Government’s announcement that they will double the support for renewable power from
biomass gasification through the ROC system, we continue to progress the East London Sustainable
Energy Facility We are close to finalising the key commercial contracts with our prospective
Engineering, Procurement and Constructton {'EPC’) contractors, Shanks East London and Ford Motor
Company We are developing a number of follow-up projects

Novera has been assisting Mulbplex Developments and therr partners in the conceptual design for a
gasification/ Combined Heat Power (‘CHP’} facility to be integrated into this proposed Brent Cross
Cricklewood Energy Centre The facility would provide in excess of 15MW of electnicity and 30MW of
heat to the proposed commercial and retail development in North London

In late 2007 Novera was awarded a contract for a small, wood-fuelling gasification/CHP facility for a
major infrastructure owner The proposed gasification facility will generate approximately 1MW of
electricity and 2MW of heat, all of which would be used in a new develcpment being planned




FINANCIAL REVIEW

2007 was another important and transformational year for Novera Of special note was

acquisition of our remaining 50 per cent of Novera Macquarie Renewable Energy Limited (NMRE) for

£30 0 rmillion, our 50 50 joint venture with Macquarie,

raising £38 0 milhon (before costs) in cash by issuing an additional 69 1 milign shares to fund the

acquisttion of NMRE,

the change in the domicile of the Parent Company from Australia to the UK,
continuing investment in our wind development and construction programmes, and,

securing £31 5 million of non-recourse project finance debt facilities for the Lissett wind farm development

Financial Overview

The consolidated results of the Group are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting

Standards (IFRS) and include the following figures

The 2007 consolidated statutory accounts include 100 per cent of NMRE from 22 January 2007, equity

31 Dec 07 31 Dec 06

£'000 £'000

Revenue 32,148 2,183
Cost of sales (17.239) (1,881)
Gross profit before depreciation and amortisation 14,909 302
EBITDA 10,250 (3,219)
Net loss after tax (1,958) (3,016)
Tangible & intangible assets 159,056 76
Cash balance 10,803 3,693
Borrowings (87,910) -
Net assets 57,229 15,688

accounting Novera's 50 per cent interest in NMRE in 2006 and in 2007 up to 22 January

The Directors have produced the results of the Group on a pro-forma basis which shows the results for 2006
and 2007 as if Novera had owned 100 per cent of NMRE (exciuding discontinued operations) for both of those
years to provide a comparison between 2007 and 2006 which reflects the underlying performance of the

business
31 Dec 07 31 Dec 06
Pro forma Pro forma
£'000 £'000

{unaudited)  (unaudited)
Revenue 34,440 31,410
Cost of sales (18,449) (17,955)
Gross profit before depreciation and amortisation 15,991 13,455
EBITDA 11,230 8,912
Tangible & intangible assets 159,056 156,315
Cash balance 10,803 18,368
Borrowings (87,910) (92,111)
Net assets 57,229 58,117

On a pro-forma basis the key financial highlights for the year ended 31 December 2007 include

annual revenue record of £34 4 million up 10 per cent (excluding discontinued operations)

* Landfill gas increased by 11 per cent to £27 0 million
* Hydroelectric increased by 2 per cent to £3 1 million
*  Wind increased by 8 per cent to £1 9 milion

Water Services and Industrial increased by 6 per cent to £2 4 million
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The average sales price achieved across the portfolio increased to £57/MWh 1n 2007 (2006
£53/MWh) Higher pnces were achieved due to a total of seven former NFFO sites now receiving
higher revenue ROC contracts

- total cost of sales increased by 3 per cent, significantly less than revenue increases resulting in a
record gross profit (before depreciation and amortisatton) margin of 46 per cent, an increase of 3
per cent over 2006 This was largely due to increased umt sales revenue, implementation of
improvement programme and various one-off items

- new records achieved across all key earnings measures including gross profit before depreciation
and amortisation was up 19 per cent to £16 0 million and EBITDA up 26 per cent to £11 2 million

- pre-construction expenditure incurred 1n cash was £3 0 milllon (2006 £2 4 million) of which £1 8
million {2006 £ml) was capitalised Pre-construction expenditure s capitalised when the
operational and financial viability of the project has been established with reasonable certainty and
the decision made to take the project forward to planning In previous years all pre-construction
costs were expensed This new accounting policy recognises Novera's expertise in project
development and management Wind cash expenditure increased by 118 per cent to £2 4 muliion
(£18 millon capitalised), reflecting the increase of actvity with four planning applications
submitted duning the year ELSEF-related expenditure decreased by 54 per cent to £0 6 million

- Lissett Airfield Wind Farm reached financial closure in November

- we also settled the Roxwell indemnity (£0 7 milion) and Samba warranty claims (£0 4 million),
both accounted for as a reduction in the purchase consideration of NMRE

Change of Domicile from Australia to United Kingdom

Novera Energy pic was incorporated on 15 March 2007 and, on 29 May 2007 under a scheme of
arrangement approved by sharehclders and the Australian Supreme Court replaced Novera Energy
Limited (incorporated in Australia} as the parent company of the Group The shareholders and ther
interests n the business immediateiy before and after this arrangement were the same These
financial statements have been presented as If Novera Energy plc had been the parent throughout the
reported peniod together with comparative information

Acquisition of Remaining 50 per cent of NMIRE

The acquisition of the remaining 50 per cent of NMRE from Macquarie was completed on 22 January
2007 The purchase pnce was £30 0 milion

The acquisihon was financed through a placing of 69 1 million shares at 55 pence per share, raising a
total of £38 0 milion before costs Immediately following the placing the number of ordinary shares on
Issue was 124 1 million

The assets now being consolidated following the NMRE acquisition are the landfill gas, hydro and
wind farm assets owned by NMRE As a result the balance sheet of the Group fundamentally
changed from 22 January 2007 onwards, with £70 0 million of fixed assets, £83 3 million of intangible
assets and £3 4 million of goodwill coming onto the balance sheet on acquisition date, representing
our provisional assessment of fair values of the assets acquired The Group 1s not adopting & policy of
revaluation

Cash Position and Finance Facilities

Novera focuses on operating cash flow to maximise shareholder value over the long-term Operating
cash flow 1s pnncipally used to invest in further development

As at 31 December 2007, bank loans were £89 0 million and cash on hand was £10 8 million including
£6 5 mitlion in restnicted cash

In November, Novera finalised the funding for Lissett The capital cost has been funded through a

combination of new debt facilities and existing cash reserves Under the debt facility, Fortis Bank has
underwniten £31 5 mithion of hmited recourse debt facilities over a 16 5 year term of the project
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The Company is currently considenng options for refinancing the business and the Directors believe
the Group has significant additional borrowing capacity, which can be used to fund further
development projects

Power Sales and Trading

The Group has entered into various Power Purchase Agreements ('PPAs’) under which a customer
takes all the electricity generated from specified assets for the contractual period, typically between
one and 15 years The unit price paid for electricity 1s specified in the PPA fixed in the shorter term
and based on market pnices in the ionger term These arrangements are similar in nature to operating
leases with no minimum committed payments Revenue from PPAs and the relevant assets used to
generate the electricity are reported in the segment relevant to the type of asset used to generate the
electricity Revenue 1s recognised as electricity 1s generated at the contracted rate on the date of
generation, except where that rate cannot be determined with reasonable accuracy in which case it 1s
recognised when the rate can be determined with reasonable certainty

Risk Management

The Group's activities expose It to a varety of financial nsks such as market, economic, credit and
Interest rnisk

The Group’s overall sk management programme focuses on the predictability of revenue and control
over operating costs to maximise the financial performance of the Group Our policies require us to

prepare a nsk management pian that 1s reviewed by the Board The nsks faced by Novera are
discussed n further detall within the notes to these accounts

Dividend

The directers are not proposing to pay a dividend

Rory Quinlan
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
17 March 2008 17 March 2008



DIRECTORS
Board of Directors

Roy Frankhin OBE, Chairman
Roy 1s Charman and a Non-executive Director of Novera Energy plc

Roy, a veteran of the energy industry, was formerly Chief Executive of independent ol company
Paladin Resources plc, prior to which he was Group Managing Director of Clyde Petroleum plc Before
joiing Clyde in 1991, he worked at BP for 18 years, latterly heading up BP Exploration's acquisition
and dvestitures group

Roy currently also chairs Bateman Litwin N V, the AIM quoted oilfield services group and 1s a Non-
executive director of StatoilHydro ASA, the Norwegian ol and gas company, and Santos Ltd, the
Australian independent oil and gas exploration company He 1s also a Director of Keller Group plc, a
FTSE 250 ground engineenng specialist where he sits on the Board's Audit Committee

David Fitzsimmons, Chief Executive Officer

David spent 27 years with BP where he held senior positions in all core businesses, including

CEO of BP's all trading, President of BP Asia and Commercial Director for BP's Gas, Power and
Renewable business He brings to Novera an in depth knowledge of energy markets together with
proven management and strategic skills, and experence In leading growth businesses David joined
Navera in October 2005

Rory Quinlan, Chief Financial Officer

Rory has extensive experience in the development, structuning, financing and management of complex
energy infrastructure businesses In addition, he has substantial M&A, equity market and public
company experience Prior to joining Novera, Rory held senior positions with Ergon Energy and
Xstrata (MIM Holdings) Rory joined Novera in 2004

Michael Cairns, Non-executive Director

Michael 15 an experienced executive having held positions as Chairman, CEO, COO and non-
executive director of a variety of private equity, government and listed public enterpnses Michael
brings to Novera expenence in the management and implementation of successful growth strategies in
small to medium enterprises

Michael 15 a member of both the Remuneration Committee and Nominations Committee

Brian Duckworth, Non-executive Director

8nan spent 30 years with Severn Trent plc, before retinng as Managing Director of Severn Trent
Water in 2005 Prior to joining Severn Trent he worked for four years for East Midlands Electricity
Brian 1s also a Director of Redrow plc, and White Young Green plc In each of these companies he sits
on or Chairs the Boards' Remuneration and Audit Committees He 1s the Senior Independent Non-
executive Director of Redrow plc and Chairs the Environmental and Corporate Responsibility
Committee

Bnan 1s Chairman of both the Remuneration Committee and the Nominations Committee, a member of
the Audit and Compliance Committee and Senior Independent Director of the Board

James Grace, Non-executive Director

James 1s a Director in the Corporate Finance Department of Investec Investment Banking, a division of
the Investec Bank (UK) Limited James began his career at Prnce Waterhouse and then worked for
James Capel and Hoare Govett in corporate finance After a subsequent penod as a corporate
recovery specialist, he joined Investec Henderson Crosthwaite in 1995 James was also a director of
UK Land pic from 1993 to 2003

James 1s Chairman of the Audit and Compliance Committee and a member of both the Remuneration
Committee and Nominations Committee
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Compliance with the Combined Code

The Company's shares were admitted to the Alternative Investment Market (AIM) of the London Stock
Exchange (LSE) on 10 June 2005 AlIM-listed companies are not required to comply with the
disclosure requirements of the Combined Code of Corporate Governance (‘the Combined Code’)
issued by the Financial Reporting Council in July 2003 However, the Board supports the principles
contained in the Code and 15 committed to maintaining Corporate Governance according to industry
standards

The following report summarises the current corporate governance processes that are in place
Directors

The Board

The Board meets regularly for scheduled Board Meetings and in addition undertakes a separate offsite

meeting to discuss strategy The Board also meets as required to deal with urgent business including
consideration and approval of transactions

The table below lists the number of Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings, and Directors’
attendance dunng the year ended 31 December 2007

Meetings of committees
Full meetings of Audht & Remunerations &

Director Directors Compliance Nominations

A [ B A [e A B
R Frankhn 7 7 4 * *
M Cairns 8 8 * * 4 4
B Duckworth 5 5 2 2 2 2
D Fitzsmmons 8 8 * * * "
J Grace 5 5 2 2 2 2
R Quinlan 8 8 v - * -
J Brown 3 3 2 2 2 2
M Collopy 3 3 * * * *
D Farrands 3 3 2 2 * *
D Scaysbrook 1 3 * * * *

A = Number of meetings attended
B = Number of meetings held during the tme the Director held office or was a member of the committee during the year
* = Not a member of the relevant commiitee

The functions reserved for the Board and management are formalised The Board of Directors 1s
responsible for the direction and oversight of the Company

The current Directors bring to the Board considerable experience and expertise in their respective
fields thus enhancing the effectiveness of the decision-making process Details of the Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and Directors are set out on pages 8 of this Annuai Report

The respensibilities of the Board include

» approval of goals, strategy and plans for the Company’s direction and monitoring
implementation,

= approval of the Company's risk management and internal control framework,

= approval of Company policies such as remuneration, health & safety and environment,

» discussion and approval of management recommendations such as capital expenditure,
capital management, acquisitions and divestitures,

s review of performance and results,

« review of statutory, regulatory and reporting requirements of the Companies Act and the Stock
Exchange {(AlM),



= review of Stock Exchange matters,

= review of related party transactions, and

» appointment and dismissal of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary, determining their conditions of service and monitoring their performance
against established objectives

The Company Manual and its policies are updated regularly and managed by the Company Secretary
Responsibility for the management of day-to-day operations and administration of the Company 1s
delegated by the Board to the Chief Executive Officer

Chamrman and Chief Executive Officer
The Charrman and Chief Executive Officer have separate clearly defined responsibilities that are not
exercised by the same person Roy Franklin replaced John Brown as Chairman in May 2007 David
Fitzsimmons 1s Chief Executive Officer

Board balance and independence

The Board comprises of four non-executive directors and two executive directors The Board
considers that Non-executive Directors, Roy Frankin, Brian Duckworth and James Grace, are
independent Brian Duckworth 1s the Senior Independent Director

The independence cntena of the Combined Code are considered in all current and future
appointments of non-executive directors

The Board’s size and composition i1s subject to the imits imposed by the Company's Constitution,
which provides for a minimum of three and a maximum of ten directors

The Company has detalled and prescribed guidelines on trading shares

Appointments to the Board

The Nominations Committee leads the process for Board appointments and makes recommendations
to the Board They evaluate the balance of skils, knowledge and experience of the Board and prepare
a description of the roles and capabilities required for new Non-executive Directors to be appointed to
the Board

The Nominations Committee meets as necessary, but at least once a year, and met three times during
2007 The current members are the Non-executive Directors, Brian Duckworth, James Grace and
Michael Cairns The number of meetings held by the commuittee has been outhned on page 9

In the appointment of James Grace and Brnian Duckworth as Non-executive Directors and to the
relevant sub-committees of the Board, the Nominations Committees prepared a Job specification,
including an assessment of the tme commitment expected Other significant commitments were
disclosed to the Board before the appointment An external search consultancy was used in the
appointments

Information and professional development

Prior to each scheduled Board Meeting, all Directors are presented with the Board Papers which
compnse of a CEQ Report and a Financial Report The CEO briefs the Board on results, key Issues
and strategy during the Board Meetings

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary The Company
Secretary ensures that good information flows amongst the Board and its committees and between
senior management and non-executive directors The Company Secretary also advises the Board
through the Chairman on all governance matters

The Directors, where appropriate, are able to seek independent professional advice at the expense of
the Company and have unrestricted access to the records and information of the Company

All Directors receive an induction on jomning the Board and regularly update and refresh their skills and
knowledge of the business

Performance evaluation
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The Board undertakes a formal and ngorous annual evaluation of its own performance and that of its
committees and individual directors The non-executive directors are responsible for the performance
evaluation of the Chairman, taking into account the views of executive directors

Key executives have performance expectations in letters of appointment and employment contracts
All executives and employees undergo a formal performance review by Apnl each year Position
descriptions are updated as part of the performance review process

Re-election

All directors are subject to election at the first annual general meeting {AGM) after appointment, and to
re-election thereafter at intervals of no more than three years Biographies of all Directors are
provided in the Directors’ Report, and those Directors subject to re-election are notified in the Notice of
the AGM

Remuneration

Remuneration

Disclosure of directors’ remuneration I1s set out on pages 17 to 21 of the Remuneration Report  The
Board believes that levels of remuneration shall be sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors of
the quality required to run the Company successfully A significant proportion of executive directors’
remuneration shall be structured as to link rewards to corporate and individual performance

Remuneration & Nominations Committee
The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include

= setting the remuneration policy,
ensuring that the remuneration and terms of service of the directors are appropnate,
reviewing the structure of the Board,
matenal changes to the rules of the Company pension or employee share scheme, and
considering candidates for Board nomination and executive management

The Committee meets as necessary, but at least once a year, and met four imes duning 2007 The
current members are the three Non-executive Directors, Brian Duckworth (Chairman), Michael Cairns
and James Grace The number of meetings held by the committee has been outlihed on page 9
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Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting
The Board 1s commutted to ensunng that all communications with shareholders present a balanced,
understandable assessment of the Company’s position and prospects

The responsibiities of the Directors and Auditors are set out in the Directors’ Report and Auditors’
Report on pages 16 and 22 respectively

Internal Controf

The Board maintains a sound system of internal control to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the
Company’s assets The Board, at least annually, conducts a review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s system of internal controls and reports to shareholders that they have done so The review
covers all matenal controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and rnisk
management systems

The Company's Audit and Compliance Committee (‘ACCY) serves the function of reviewing
management practices In relation to the identification and management of significant nsk areas and
regulatory compliance At least one member has recent and relevant financial experience

The Company has in place clearly defined hnes of responsibility and imits of delegated authority
Comprehensive procedures provide for the appraisal, approval, control and review of capital
expenditure

The Company maintains a comprehensive annual budgeting and management reporting system A
detalled annual budget 1s prepared in advance of each year and 1s supplemented by revised forecasts
during the course of the year Actual financial results are reported monthly and compared to budget,
revised forecasts and prior year results

Audit and Compliance Commitiee
The members of the ACC are Non-executive Directors James Grace (Charman), Roy Franklin and
Bran Duckworth

The ACC's primary cbjectives are to assist the Board in fulfiling its responsibilities in relation to
financial reporting and internal controls, and also mantaining the relationship with the external
auditors The responsibiliies of the ACC include
*  making recommendations to the Board on the appointment of external auditors,
= reviewing the quality and independence of the external auditors and the rotation of external
audit engagement partners,
= providing an independent, objective review of the adequacy and the integnty of the financial
information provided by management to shareholders and regulatory authonities, and
s reviewing the changes to treasury policies

The external auditors have a direct line of reporting to the ACC and have clear and open access to the
members of the Committee The ACC's policy I1s to appoint external auditors who clearly demonstrate
quality and independence The performance of the external auditors 1s reviewed annually

The number of meetings held by the Committee has been outlined page 8 The formal terms of
reference for the Audit and Compliance Committee are set out tn the Company Manual

Relations with Shareholders

The Company has a communications strategy to promote effectve commumication with ali
shareholders and encourage effective participation Communication initiatives undertaken by the
Company include media announcements and the Company web site  Other than dunng a closed
period the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer also maintain regular dialogue with institutional
shareholders throughout the year

All information disclosed to the London Stock Exchange (LSE) 1s posted on the Company's web site
within three days of being disclosed to the LSE Access to price sensitive information i1s ngorously
controlled but procedures have been established to ensure that any such information 1s immediately
released to the market, should it become inadvertently disclosed
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The Chief Executive Officer has overall responsibility for management of the Company’s continucus
disclosure obligations as well as communication with analysts, brokers, shareholders, the media and
the public, so as to ensure that the announcements are timely, factual, clear and precise and omit no
matenal information

Board members and the external auditors attend the annual general meeting and are availlable to
answer questions Resoclutions are proposed on each substantially separate 1ssue, including in relation
to the Report and Accounts and the Directors’ Remuneration Report

Notice of the AGM and related papers are sent to all sharehelders at least 21 days before the meeting
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Drrectors present therr report on the consolidated Group consisting of Novera Energy plc and the
entities it controlled at the end of or during the year ended 31 December 2007

Novera Energy plc was incorporated on 15 March 2007, and on 29 May 2007 under a scheme of
arrangement approved by shareholders and the Australlan Supreme Court New South Wales,
replaced Novera Energy Limited (incorporated in Australia) as the parent company of the Group The
shareholders and their interests in the business immediately before and after the scheme of
arrangement have been preserved

These financial statements have been presented as if Novera Energy plc had been the parent
throughout the reported pernod together with comparative information  Novera Energy ple 1s domiciled
and incorporated in the UK

Directors
The following persons were Directors of Novera Energy ple during the financial year and up to the date
of this report, their date of appointment are shown in the paragraph below

Mr Roy Frankliin

Mr Michael Cairns

Mr Brian Duckworth
Mr David Fitzsimmons
Mr James Grace

Mr Rory Quinlan

Retirement, election and continuation 1n office of Directors
Mr David Fitzsimmons, previously a director of Novera Energy Limited and Mr Rory Quinlan were
appointed as Executive Directors on incorporation of Novera Energy plc on 15 March 2007

Mr Brian Duckworth, Mr James Grace and Mr Michael Cairns were appointed as Non-executive
Directors on 25 May 2007

Mr Roy Franklin was appointed Non-executive Director of Novera Energy Limited on 20 February 2007
and of Novera Energy plc on 15 March 2007 and Chairman on 25 May 2007

Mr John Brown and Mr David Scaysbrook resigned as Non-executive Directors of Novera Energy
Limited on 25 May 2007 Mr Donald Farrands resigned as Non-executive Director of Novera Energy
Lirited In September 2007 Ms Michelene Collopy remains a Non-executive Director of Novera
Energy Limited

Company Secretary
Ms Liz Oldroyd (appointed 12 March 2007)
Mr Rory Quinlan (resigned 12 March 2007)

The qualifications and experience of the Directors are set out on page 8 of this Annual Report
Meetings of Directors
The numbers of meetings of the Company’s Board of Directors, of each Board Committee held durning

the year ended 31 December 2007 and of the number attended by each Director, are disclosed in the
Report on Corporate Governance on page 8
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Principal activities
During the year the principal continuing activities of the Group consisted of
= the operation of a renewable energy portfolio consisting of landfill gas, wind farms and hydro,
= the operation of a water services business in the UK, providing cperation and mantenance
services to the wastewater industry,
= the development of wind farm sites across the UK, and
= the development of the East London energy from waste project

Results
The consolidated loss for the year ended 31 December 2007 after income tax was £1,958,000 (2006
£3,016,000)

Dividends
No dividend was declared or paid dunng the year ended 31 December 2007 (2006 Enil)

Review of operations
A review of operations including KPIs 1s set out in the Operations Review and Financial Review
included on pages 3to 7

Significant changes in the state of affairs
Significant changes In the state of affairs of the Group included
» on 22 January 2007, the Group acquired the remaining 50 per cent of NMRE, its 50 50 joint
venture with Macquarie, raising £38 0 million by i1ssuing 69 1 million additional shares to fund
the transaction, and

= on 29 May 2007 under a scheme of arrangement approved by shareholders and the
Australian Supreme Court New South Wales, Novera Energy plc replaced Novera Energy
Limited (incorporated in Australia) as the parent company of the Group The shareholders’
interests in the business iImmediately before and after thus arrangement were the same

Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year

Further to the Company's announcement on 15 February 2008 the Company 1s continuing
negotiations with 31 Infrastructure concerning a possible cash offer for the entire 1ssued and to be
Issued share capital of Novera at a price of 90 pence per share

In seeking to address one of the pre-condttions noted in the announcement by the Company on 15
February 2008, Novera approached Waste Recycling Group Limited (“WRG”) requesting consentto a
potential change of control in certain leases and licenses Court proceedings have now been
commenced for a determination of this issue Novera were informed on 22 February 2008 that WRG
had appointed Infinis Limited as its agent in respect of the matter before the court The hearing on this
matter 1s to take place on 7 and 8 April 2008

On 17 March 2006 the Board of Novera also announced that on 18 February 2008 it received an
appreach from Infinis Acquisitions Limited

Likely developments and expected results of operations
The Group will continue to pursue new opportunities in the UK

Further information on likely developments in the operations of the Group and the expected results of
those operations have not been included in this Report as the Directors believe it would be ikely to
result in unreasonable prejudice to the Group

Insurance of Directors and Officers
The Company has In place a global Directors’ and Officers’ insurance, insuring past, present and
future Directors and Officers of the Company and its subsidiary Companies (as defined in the contract
of msurance) against certain abilities incurred in that capacity Disclosure of the nature of the hability
covered by this contract of insurance i1s prohibited by the contract of insurance The premium payable
for 2007 was £24,366 (2006 £33,141)

15



. —

Directors Responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report
and the Financial Statements in accordance with apphicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that
law the directors have prepared the group and parent company financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRSs') as adopted by the European Union The
financial statements are required by law to give a true and farr view of the state of affars of the
company and the group and of the prefit or loss of the company and group for that period

In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to

» select suitable accounting polictes and then apply them consistently,

» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

» state that the financial statements comply with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and
IFRSs 1ssued by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and

*» prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless it 1s inappropriate to
presume that the group will continue in business, in which case there should be supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary

The directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparnng the financial
statements

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and the group and to enable them to ensure
that the financial statements and the Directors' Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act
1985 and, as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and the group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the Company's web site Legislation
in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of Financial Statements may differ
from legislation in other junsdictions

Disclosure to Auditors

So far as each director 1s aware, there I1s no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors
are unaware The directors have taken all the steps, such as making enquiries of other directors and
the auditors, and any other steps required by the director's duty to exercise due care, skill and
dilgence, that he ought to have taken in his duty as a director 1n order to make himself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware of that information

Environmental Regulation

The Company 1s subject to environmental regulation in relation to its operatons The Company
monitors compliance with environmental regulations and has procedures to be followed should an
incident occur which adversely impacts the environment No material breaches of environmental
regulations cccurred dunng the financial year and up to the date of this report

This Report has been made in accordance with & resolution of Directors

TN fmnt

David Fitzsimmons
Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer
London, 17 March 2008
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Remuneration Report

This Report outlines the remuneration arrangements in place for Directors of Novera Energy plc

This Report has been prepared to comply with the Combined Code on Corporate Governance issued
by the Financial Reporting Council 1t has been approved by the Remuneration Committee and the
Board Shareholders will be invited to approve it at the Company's AGM

Remuneration Policy

The Company has designed a remuneration framework to support both a performance culture and
team focus by adhering to agreed business objectives The framework seeks to

« attract, retain and motivate the high calibre professional, managenal and technological
expertise necessary to realise the Company's business objectives,

* ensure that the remuneration policy 1s competitive and fairly refiects the appropnate returns for
achieving the Company's business goals and achieving success in the markets within which
the Company operates, and

= mantain the correct balance and linkage between individual, team and business performance
so as to effectively align the interests of the employee with those of colleagues and
shareholders

The objective of the Company's executive reward framework 1s to ensure reward for performance I1s
competitive and appropriate for the results delivered and conforms with market best practice for
delivery by satisfying criteria for alignment to shareholders’ interests and alignment to participants’
interests

The framework provides a mix of fixed and vanable pay, and a blend of short- and long-term
Incentives

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee reviews the compensation strategy and the compensation
arrangements for all key management personnel cn an annual basis and makes recommendations to
the Board They have access to independent external advisors as required

The members of the Remuneration Committee during the year were the Non-executive Directors,
Brian Duckworth {(Chairman) May 2007, Michael Cairns and James Grace Bnan Duckworth replaced
John Brown on the Commuttee and Michael Cairns as Chairman

Non-executive Director Remuneration

Fees and payments to non-executive directors reflect the demands which are made on, and the
responsibilittes of, the directors The chairman’s fees are determined independently to the fees of non-
executive directors based on comparative roles in the external market

Executive Director Remuneration

The executive pay and reward framework has four components
* base pay and benefits,
* shori-term performance incentives (cash bonuses),
* long-term incentives through participation in the Novera Energy Long Term Incentive Plan,
and
» other compensation such as superannuation or pension scheme

The combination of these comprises the executive's total compensation
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Base pay and benefits

Base pay and benefits are structured as a total employment cost package which may be delivered as
a combination of cash and prescribed non-financial benefits These are determined by a number of
factors including competence and performance cnteria

Where applicable, executives receive benefits including car allowances

The Company does not offer a defined benefit pension scheme to executive directors Instead, it
makes contributions to the approved defined contributions pension scheme of the Company Pension
contributions range from 0 per cent to 7 per cent of base salary The amount of pension contributions
made In respect of each executive director are set out below

Short-term Performance Incentives ('STPY)

Executive directors, management and staff have the opportumty to earn annual bonus payments
These bonuses are linked to the overall corporate performance and are dependent on meeting both
personal and/or corporate goals The proportion that 1s set in refation to individual performance ranges
from 0—100 per cent, depending on senionty and the scope of the job The Company expects a high
level of achievement when it sets its base and ’stretch' bonus targets The stretch targets require an
achrevement well beyond that which was planned and involves making significant contnbution to the
Company's performance The senior positions are more exposed to corporate goals which include
financial performance as a parameter

Long-term incentive Plan ('LTIP)

Long-term incentives are a mechanism to link a significant portion of the executive's compensation to
the attainment of substantial growth In shareholder value by atiracting and retaining employees who
strive for excellence, and to motivate those employees to achieve above-average financial objectives
for the Company

In July 2006 the Company established an LTIP, which is a scheme based on a three-year rolling plan
LTIP awards are conditional grants of shares that will vest and are released upon the Company
meeting the required cntena Such a plan should ensure that key management personnel do not
derve compensation benefits without prowviding a direct contribution to the long-term superior
performance of the Company

The 2006 and 2007 LTIP awards vest shares to the award holders in 2009 and 2010 respectively and
are both dependent on the Company's performance against a total shareholder retum measure
relative to the Financial Times Stock Exchange (‘'FTSE’) Small Cap Index for the UK The 2006 LTIP
Is also dependent on the Company’s performance against operating cash flow targets to end of 2008
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Details of compensation

Director compensation

For the year ended 31 December 2007, details of all the benefits paud are set out in the table below

2007
2008
Total
Cash salary/ Cash bonus Pension Total
Name fees
£ £ £ £ £
R _Frankhn (a) 51,250 - - 51,250 -
M Cairns 22,981 - - 22 981 20,000
B Duckworth (b} 18,077 - - 18,077 -
D Fitzsimmons 198 500 112,500 - 311,000 272,000
J Grace (€) 18,077 - - 18,077 -
R _Quinlan {(d) 131,779 56,250 8,178 196,207 -
J Brown (&) 10,417 - - 10,417 50,000
M Collopy (f) 8,124 - - 8,124 72,971
D Farrands {q) 8124 - - 8,124 20,452
D Scaysbrook (h) 7.500 - - 7,500 89,181
Total 474 829 168,750 8,178 651,757 524,604
The total compensation above Is analysed as follows

2007 2006

£'000 £000

Novera Energy Limited to May 2007 264,253 524,604

Novera Energy plc from June 2007 387,504 -

651,757 524,604

(a) Appointed as Director of Novera Energy Limited in February 2007 and as Charrman of Novera Energy ple in May 2007
{b} Appointed to the Board of Novera Energy plc as a Non-executive Director in May 2007
{c) Appointed to the Board of Novera Energy plc as a Non-executive Director in May 2007

(d} Appointed as Director of Novera Energy plc in March 2007, payments disclosed above relate to payments made from 1

January 2007 to include both Executive and Director Remuneration

{e} Resigned as Director and Chairman of Novera Energy Limited in May 2007

{fi Non-executive Director of Novera Energy Limited, remuneration relates to fees paid up to re-imcorporation
Collopy receved £6,803 of fees in 2007 as a Dwector of Novera Energy Limited and Novera Renewable Energy Limited
post re-incorporation and £7,733 for financial accounting and company secretanal services in Australia on an 'as required’
basis at an agreed hourly rate of £50 M Collopy was an Executive Director until 30 June 2006 which included a role as
Company Secretary and Financral Controller of Novera Energy Limited in Australia, and the amounts above in 2006

include payments made to her as Company Secretary and Financial Controller

{g) Resigned as Director in September 2007 The remuneration disclosed above refates to fees pad by Novera Energy
Limited up to re-incorporation In addition D Farrands receved £1,669 of fees in 2007 as a Director of Novera Energy

Limited post re-incorporatien

{h) Resigned as Director of Novera Energy Limted in May 2007 D Scaysbrock was an Executive Director until 30 June 2006
and then a Non-executive Director thereafter, the amounts above include payments both as Executive and Non-executive

Director

No Drirector has the authority to determine their own remuneration
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Service agreaments
Compensation and other terms of employment for the Chief Executive Officer and specified
employees are formalised in service agreements Each of these agreements provides for the provision
of performance-related benefits Other major provisions of the agreements are set out as follows

Date of

Fixed

Drector | (Commencementof | Tarmof | Compansavon | Tort | TERUC | et
contract & Pension Incentives Period Termination
in Months Value
R Frankiin 20-Feb-07 (a) Y N/A 3 (c}
M Cains 10-May-07 (a) Y N/A 3 {c}
B Duckworth 10-May-07 (a) Y N/A 3 (c)
D Fitzsimmons 01-Jan-08 Permanent Y (b} Y 6 (c)
J Grace 10-May-07 (a) Y N/A 3 (c)
R Quinlan 01-Jan-08 Pemanent Y Y 36 (d)
Notes

{a) Non-executive directors are typically expected to serve two three-year terms

{b} D Frtzsimmons fixed compensation includes a car allowance
{c) Compensation payable on termination 1s equal to the notice penod
{d} R Quinlan's compensation on termunation 1s equivalent to 50 per cent base salary
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Equity instrument disclosures relating to directors
Share-based compensation LTIP

LTIP awards are conditional grants of shares that will be released upon the Company meeting the
required critena

Shares are awarded under the plan for no consideration and carry no dividend or voting rights Further
information on the LTIP 1s set out in note 24 of the Financial Report

The following shares awarded as part of the LTIP were held, directly or beneficially, by each director,
including thetr personally related entities, during the reporting period

Shares Vesting dates
Name LTIP | Interests at awarded interests at Market Price | Performance Period if target
1 Jan-07 | dunng the year 31 Dec-07 at at Award performance
attarget | which may vest target Date (p) reached
perfor- at target performance”
mance* performance”
D Fitzsimmons 2006 500,000 - 500,000 54 0 | 01/01/2006-31/12/2008 30 May 2009
2007 - 500,000 500,000 69 5 | 01/01/2007-31/12/2009 30 May 2010
R Qumnian 2006 200,000 - 200,000 54 0 | 01/01/2006-31/12/2008 30 May 2009
2007 - 200,000 200,000 69 5 | 01/01/2007-31/12/2009 30 May 2010

*Number of shares wiich may vest at maximum performance = 157 per cent of shares which may vest at larget performance

Share-based compensation options
Options previously granted under the Novera Energy Austrahian Incentive Option Plan (NEAIOP) have
all now lapsed The number of options at 31 December 2006 was 50,000, held by D Scaysbrook

Shareholdings

The numbers of shares in the Company held during the reporting period and at the date of this Report
by each director of Novera Energy ple, including their personally related entities, are set out below

Balance at Balance

1 January 2007 | Changes in Year | at 31 December 2007
Director
R Franklin - 50,000 50,000
M Cairns - - -
B Duckworth - 25,000 25,000
D Fitzsimmons 219,587 363,600 583,187
J Grace - - -
R Qumlan 11,596 - 11,596

J Brown resigned in May 2007 his shareholding at this tme was 50,000 shares

D Farrands resigned in September 2007 tus shareholding at this time was 1,010,107 shares

D Scaysbrook resigned in May 2007 his shareholding at this time was 1,997,105 shares

M Collopy 1s a Director of Novera Energy Limited, at the date of re-incorporation her shareholding was
27,000

Loans to key management personnel

Key management do not maintain any loans from or to the Company
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NOVERA ENERGY PLC

We have audited the group financial statements of Novera Energy plc for the year ended 31
December 2007 which comprise the Consohdated Income Statement, the Consolidated Balance
Sheet, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income
and Expense and the related notes These group financial statements have been prepared under the
accounting policies set out therein

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Novera Energy pfc for the
period ended 31 December 2007

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for prepanng the Annual Report and the group financtal statements In
accordance with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibiities

Our responsibility 1s to audit the group financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and
regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) This report,
including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body In
accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose  We do not, In
giving this opinion, accept or assume respensibility for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report I1s shown or inte whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior
consent in writing

We report to you our opinion as to whether the group financial statements give a true and far view and
whether the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Comparnies Act 1985 We also report to you whether in our opinion the information given in the
Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the group financial statements The information given in the
Directors’ Report includes that specific information presented in the Operating Review and the
Financial Review that 1s cross referred from the Review of operations section of the Directors’ Report

In addition we report to you if, In our opinion, we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit, or if nformation specified by law regarding director's
remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it 1s consistent with
the audited group financial statements The other information compnises only the Chairman’s Report,
the Operating Review, the Financial Review, the Directors, the Corporate Governance Statement, the
Directors Report, and the Remuneration Report We consider the implications for our report if we
become aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the group financial
statements Qur responsibilities do not extend to any other information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
issued by the Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and discliosures in the group financial statements If also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the
group financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s
cireumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary In order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that
the group financiai statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
irregulanty or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation
of information in the group financial statements
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Opinion
In our optnton

¢ the group financtal statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union, of the state of the group’s affairs as at 31 December 2007 and of its loss and
cash flows for the year then ended,

« the group financral statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985, and

+ the information given in the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the group financial statements

L2
PricewaterhouseCoopers MP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Manchester
17 March 2008
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Novera Energy plc

Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Notes £'000 £000
Revenue 4 32,148 2,183
Cost of sales before amortisation and depreciation {17,239) (1,881)
Gross profit before depreciation and amortisation 14,909 302
Depreciation B (5,275) (33)
Amortisation 6 {4,072) -
Total cost of sales (26,586) (1,914)
Gross Profit after depreciation and amortisation 5,562 269
Other iIncome 5 25 1,133
Pre-construction costs 11 (1,179) (2,405)
Administration expenses (3,505) (2,249)
Operating profiti{loss) 03 (3,252)
Interest payable and similar charges 8 (5,644) (2)
Interest recevable 8 946 202
Shares of net profit of a joint venture 13 259 36
Loss before income tax (3.536) (3,016)
Taxation 9 1,578 -
Loss for the year (1,958) (3,016)
Loss per share attributable to the equity holders
Note 2007 2006
Pence Pence
Basic 10 {16) (55)
Diluted 10 {186) (55)

The above consolidated mncome statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes on
pages 28 to 57
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Novera Energy plc

Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2007

2007 2006

Notes £000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 11 82,634 -
Property, plant & equipment 12 76,422 76
Investments accounted for using the equity methed 13 - 14,608
Recewvables 14 700 785
Deferred tax assets 21 881 -
Total non-current assets 160,637 15,469
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 15 7,752 1,267
Derwvative financial instruments 16 642 -
Cash and cash equivalents 17 10,803 3,693
Total current assets 19,197 4,960
LIABILITIES
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 18 (10,075) (1,982)
Deferred revenue 20 - {154)
Borrowings 19 (4,634) -
Total current iabilities {(14,709) (2,136)
Net current assets 4,488 2,824
Non-current liabilities
Deferred revenue 20 - (2,605)
Retirement benefit obligation 29 (156) -
Borrowings 19 (83,276) -
Deferred tax 21 (24,454) -
Total non-current liabilities (107,896) (2,605)
Net assets 57,229 15,688
EQUITY
Ordinary shares 22 6,203 32,243
Merger reserve 22 61,979 -
Other reserves 26 7,399 533
Accumulated losses 25 (18,352) {17,088)
Total equity 57,229 15,688

The above consolidated balance sheef should be read in comunction with the accompanying notes on
pages 28 to 57

The financial statements on pages 24 to 57 were approved by the Board of Directors on 17 March 2008
and were signed on Iits behalf by

Dawvid Fitzsimmons uinlan
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Novera Energy plc

Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income and Expense

Revaluation on acquisition of subsidiary
Hedging reserve movement

Share of movement in JV reserves

Net income recognised directly in equity
Loss for the year

Total recognised income and expense for the year 1s
attributable to

Members of Novera Energy plc

The above consolidated statements of recognised income and expense should be read in conjunction with

the accompanying notes on pages 28 to 57
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

2007 2006
£'000 £000
8,394 -
(1,557) -
453 1,720
7,290 1,720
(1,958) (3,016)
5,332 (1,296)




Novera Energy plc

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2007

2007 20086

Notes £000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 27 10,933 (2,607)
Interest received 849 98
Interest paid (5,920} -
Distribution received from joint venture - 1,600
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from operating activities 5,862 {909)
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidianes (net of cash acquired) 28 (20,377) -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 448 -
Payments for property, plant & equipment (11.677) (22)
Receipts to decrease the investment in joint venture - 870
Proceeds from/(payments} to vending of business 181 (119)
Refund of purchase consideration 28 1,097 -
(Repayment of related party borrowings) - (24)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from Investing activities (30,328) 705
Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds from i1ssue of share capital 35,882 32
Repayment of borrowings (4,3086) -
Net cash inflow from financing activities 31,576 32
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 7,110 {(172)
Cash at the beginning of the financial year 3,693 3,865
Cash at end of year 10,803 3,693
Reconciliation of cash balances
Cash at bank 17 10,803 3,693

The above consolidated cash flow should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes on

pages 28 to 57
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Novera Energy plc
Notes to the Financial Statements
31 December 2007

1 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated The financial report
includes separate financial statements for Novera Energy plc (the Company”) as an individual entity and the Group
consisting of Novera Energy plc and its subsidiaries {“the Group”)

(a)} Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal costs convention, modified where necessary by the
revaluation of financial assets and habiities (including denvative instruments) as discussed in note 1 (p)

Comphance with IFRS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS"), as adopted by the European Union IFRIC interpretations and the Company’s Act 1985 applicable
to companies reporting under IFRS

Basis of Consolidation

Novera Energy plc was incorporated on 15 March 2007, and on 28 May 2007 under a scheme of arrangement
approved by shareholders and the Australan Supreme Court New South Wales replaced Novera Energy Limited
(incorporated n Australia) as the parent company of the Group The shareholders and therr interests In the business
immediately before and after this arrangement where the same These financial statements have been presented as if
Novera Energy plc had been the parent throughout the reported penod together with comparative information

The difference between the nominal share capital of Novera Energy plc and the contnbuted capital of Novera Energy
Limited 1s shown as merger reserve as permitted by section 131 of the Compames Act 1985 The consolidated
financial statements comprise the financial statements of Novera Energy plc and its subsidiary undertakings drawn up
to 31 December The accounting years of the subsidiary undertakings are conterminous with that of the parent
company The results and cash flows of substdiary undertakings acquired or sold duning the year are included from the
effective date of acquisiion to disposal and accounted for under the acquistion method of accounting  Intra group
sales and profits are fully ehminated on consolidation

Cntical accounting eshmates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain cntical accounting estimates
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group accounting policies  Any
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumption and estimates are significant
to the financial statements are disclosed by way of note 3

New accounting standards and Inferpretations

The following new accounting standards and interpretations became effective for permods begmning on or after 1
January 2007

» |FRS 7 — Financial Instruments Disclosure

» IFRIC 8 — Scope of IFRS 2

» IFRIC 10 — Intenm financial reporting and impairment

The implementation of these new standards and interpretations did not have any significant impact on the Group's
accounting policies or treatments

The following new accounting standard has an effective date after the dates of these financial statements, but have
been adopted early by the Group
= |IFRS 8 — Operating Segments

The implementation of this new standard, other than making additional disclosure impacts, did not have any significant
impact on the Group's accounting policies or treatments

The following standards and amendments to existing international standards have been published but are not yet
mandatory for the Group and have not been early adopted

= |AS 1 (Revised) — Presentation of financial statements
»  |AS 23 (Revised) — Borrowing costs
= IFRIC 14, IAS 19 — Defined benefit assets
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The Group has made an initial assessment of the impact of these new standards |AS 1 (Rewised} wilt only impact
disclosures in future financial statements 1AS 23 (Revised) will require companies to capitalise borrowing costs relating
to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset No impact 15 expected from IFRIC 14

Not relevant to the Group
= [FRIC 13 — Customer loyally programmes
= [FRIC 12 — Service concession arrangements

{b) Principles of consolidation

{1 Subsidiaries

The consoldated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Novera Energy plc
{'Company') as at 31 December 2007 and the results of all subsidianes for the year then ended Novera Energy plc and
its subsidianes together are referred to in this report as the “Group”

Subsidianes are all those entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies,
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one-half of the voting nghits The existence and effect of potential
voting nghts that are currently exercisable or converible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity

Subsidiares are fully consolidated from the date on which control Is transferred to the Group They are de-consohdated
from the date control ceases Piece meal acquisitions are accounted for using step acquisition pnncipals and changes
to far value relating to the previously owned investments {(including joint ventures) are accounted for as revaluations
Each year a part of the revaluation reflecting the usage of the underlying assets Is transferred to the profit and loss
reserves

The purchase method of accounting 1s used to account for the acquisition of subsidianes by the Group (refer to note
1)) Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gans on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated Unrealised losses are also eliminated uniess the transaction provides evidence of the impairment of the
asset transferred Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group

(n} Joint venture entrities

The interest 1n joint venture entities 15 accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method
Under the equity method, the share of the profit or loss of the entity 1s recognised in the income statement and the
share of movements In reserves is recognised as a movement in reserves The cumulative post-acquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment

Distnbutions

Distnbutions received from joint ventures that are distnbuted out of post-acquistion reserves are recognised Iin the
parent entity’s income statement, while distributions received out of pre-acquisition reserves are offset against the
carrying value of the investment In the consolidated financial statements they reduce the carrying amount of the
investment Details relating to the Joint Venture are set out in note 13

Profits or losses on transachions

Profits or losses on transactions establishing the Joint Venture entity and transactions with the Joint Venture entity are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's ownership interest until such time as they are reahsed by the Joint Venture
enbity on consumption or sale, unless they relate to an unrealised loss that provides evidence of the impairment of an
asset transferred

(c) Segment reporting

The Group 1s organised into operating segments which form the basis of internal reporting for management and the
Board for strategic decision making, such divisions are referred to as operating segments A geographical segment 1s
engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic enviroanment The Group only operates within
the United Kingdom

(d) Foreign currency translation
(1) Functional and presentation currency

Items included n the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity cperates (‘the funchionat currency’) The consolidated financial
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statements are presented in GBEP which 1s Novera Energy plc's funchonal and presentational currency The Directors of
the Company have adopted GBP as its presentational currency as they believe it is the most relevant currency which
reflects the nisk and returns associated with the operations of the Group as the significant operations of the Group are
either UK based or controlled from the UK

(1) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are transliated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying
net iInvestment hedges

{e) Revenue recognition

Revenue for the Group 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration received or recevable Amounts disclosed as
revenue are net of trade allowances and duties and taxes pard Revenue ts recognised for the major business activities
as follows

Renewable energy generation

Revenue generated from Land Fill Gas, Hydro and Wind operations 1s recognised where there i1s a signed
uncondiional contract of sale and as electncity 15 generated at the contracted rate on the date of generation, except
where that rate cannot be determined with reasonable accuracy in which case 1t 1s recognised when the rate can be
determined with reasonable certainty

Water Services

Revenue 1s recogmised when there 1s a signed contract for the provision of operations and services for sludge drying
plants owned by third party utilities once the service has been performed

{f) Other income

Other income 1s measured at the far value of the consideration received or receivable Amounts disclosed as other
income are net of returns, trade allowances and duties and taxes paid

() Advisory fees
Advisory fees are recognised based on work performed and in Iime with conditions precedent once there 1s reasonable
assurance that the amounts are recevable

Certain advisory fees are receivable in instaiments which become payable when specified milestones on the underlying
project are completed Revenue in respect of these advisory fees i1s recognised on an accruals basis as the services
are provided

() Interest Income
Interest income 1s recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method

(m) Diadends
Dividends are recognised as other income when the night to receive payment 1s established

(g) Income tax

The income tax expense or revenue for the penod is the tax payable on the current penod's taxable income, based on
the national iIncome tax for each junsdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities, attnbutable to
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities, and therr carrying amounts In the financial
statements, and to the unused tax losses

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when the
assets are recovered or labilities are settled, based on those taxes which are enacted or substantively enacted for
each junsdiction The relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative amounts of deductible and taxable temporary
differences to measure the deferred tax asset ar iability An exception 1s made for certain temporary differences arising
from the izl recognition of an asset or liability No deferred tax asset or hability 1s recogmised i relation to these
temporary differences If they arose in a transaction, other than a business combmation, that at the time of the
transaction did not affect ether accounting profit or taxable profit or loss
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for deduchble temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it 1s probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses

Deferred tax habilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
base of iInvestments m controlled entiies where the parent entity 1s able to control the tming of the reversal of the
temporary differences and 1t 1s probable that the differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to offset current tax assets and
habiliies and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authonty Current tax assets and tax liabiliies
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable nght to offset and intends erther to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the habity simuitaneously

Current and deferred tax balances attnbutable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also recognised directly in
equity

(h) Power purchased agreements (PPAs)

The group has entered into PPAs under which, a customer takes all the electncity generated from specified assets for
the contractual penod typically between one and fifteen years and fifteen to twenty years under NFFO contracts The
unit price paid for elecinicity 13 specified in the PPA fixed in the shorter term and based on market prices in the longer
term These arrangements are similar in nature to operating feases with no minimum committed payments Revenue
from PPAs and the relevant assets used to generate the electnoity are reported in the segment relevant to the type of
asset used to generate the electncity Revenue 1s recognised as electncity 1s generated at the contracted rate on the
date of generation, except where that rate cannot be determined with reasonable accuracy in which case 1t 15
recognised when the rate can be determined with reasonable certainty

(1) Operating leases

Rental costs under other operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account in equal annual amounts over the
penods of the leases

() Business combinations

The acquisttion of subsidianes 15 accounted for using the purchase method The cost of the acquisition 1s measured at
the aggregate of the far values, at the date of exchange, of assets giwven, habilites mcurred or assumed, and equity
instruments 1ssued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attnbutable to the
business combination The acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilittes are recognised at therr farr values at the
acquisition date Transaction costs ansing on the 1ssue of equity iInstruments are recognised directly in equity

Goodwill ansing on acquisition 1s recognised as an asset and inihally measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of
the business combination over the Group’s mterest in the net farr value of the identffiable assets, habiliies and
contingent habilittes recogmised The interest of minonty shareholders in the acquiree 1s inhally measured at the
minonty's proportion of the net fair value of the assets, labilittes and contingent habilities recognised

Previously held rdentifiable assets, liabiliies and contingent habilites of the acquired entity are revalued to therr fair
value at the date of acquisition, being the date at which the Group achieves control of the acquiree The movement in
fair value 1s taken to the asset revaluation surplus

(k) Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they nught be imparred Other
assets are reviewed for imparrment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable An impairment loss 1s recogmised for the amount by which the asset's carrying value exceeds
its recoverable amount The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset's farr value less costs to sell and value in
use For the purposes of assessing impairment, assels are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows which are largely independent of the cash flows from other assets or groups of assets (cash
generating units) Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impaiment at each reperting date
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() Property, plant & equipment

Depreciation I1s calculated using the straight-ine method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over ther
estimated useful lives, as follows

Plant & Equipment 8 to 20 years

Wind Assets 20 years

Hydro Assets 40 years

Furniture & Fittings 3 to 5 years

Leasehold improvements Shorter of useful expected life or remaining life of lease

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted If appropnate, at each balance sheet date  An
asset's carrying amount ts wrntten down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’'s carrying amount 1s greater
than its estimated recoverable amount {note 1 (k))

Gans and losses on disposals are determined by comparning proceeds with the carrying amount These are included in
the income statement

Project costs related to assets in pre-construction and construction are capitalised where, in the opimion of the
Directors, the related project i1s likely to be successfully developed and the economic benefits ansing from future
operations will at least equal the amount of capitalised expenditure incurred to date Other projects costs are written off
as incurred and are included within pre-construction costs Costs capitalised to assets in pre-construction relate to
costs incurred in bringing a project to the consented stage Costs associated with reaching the consented stage include
planning application costs and environmental impact studies Construction costs relate to costs incurred in bringing the
asset from the consented stage to completed construction Depreciation commences when the asset 15 substantially
complete and ready for its intended use Full provision 1s made for any impairment in the value of the asset

Interest costs mcurred on assets constructed by the business are capitalised The amount of interest cost capitalised 15
imited to the interest cost incurred dunng the construction period During the accounting period, the amount of interest
to be capralised for each qualifying asset shali be based on the interest rate as determined by the facility agreement as
confirmed by quarterly statements

(m) Intangible assets

intangible assets acquired on a business combination are capitalised separately from goodwill If the fair value can be
measured reliably on intial recognition Intangible assets so acquired are carrned at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any imparment losses Amortisation 1s provided on a straight line basis to allocate the cost of the asset over its
estimated useful life The Directors expect the useful Iife of the Group’s intangible assets to be up to a maximum of 40
years

Intangible assets are allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of imparment testing Each of those cash-
generating units represents the Group's investment in each location of operation by each prnimary reporting segment

{n) Cash and cash equivalents

For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call
with financial institutions, other short-term, highly hquid investments with onginal matunties of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant nsk of change 1n value, and
bank overdrafts Bank overdrafts are shown with borrowings in current habilities on the balance sheet

(o)} Trade receivables

Trade recemables are recognised mnitrally at far value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less provision for
doubtful debts Trade debtors are generally receivable within 30 days

Collectability of trade receivables s reviewed on an ongoing basis Debts which are known to be uncollectible are
written off A prowision for doubtful recevables 1s established when there 1s objective evidence that the Group will not
be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal terms of receivables The amount of the prowision is the
difference between the asset's carrying value amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate The amount of the prowision 1s recognised in the iIncome statement Cash flows relating to
short term recevables are not discounted if the effect of discounting 1s immatenal
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(p) Financial labilities and assets including mmvestments

The Group classifies its investments in the following categores financial assets at farr value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, held-to-matunty investments, and available-for-sate financial assets The classification depends
on the purpose for which the mvestments were acquired Management determines the classification of its nvestments
at imtial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at each reporting date

Loans and receivables are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted In
an active market They anse when the Group provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention
of seling the receivable They are included in current assets, except for those with matunties greater than 12 months
after the balance date which are classified as non-current assets Loans and recevables are included in receivables i
the balance sheet

The Group did not hold any financial assets at far value through profit or loss, held-to-matunty investments or
available-for-sale financial assets during the penod

Financial habiities are recogrised mihally at farr value, net of transaction costs incurred Fixed rate borrowings are
subsequently staled at amortised cost, any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value Is recogrised In the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method Floating rate borrowings are subsequently stated at the contractual outstanding repayable principal amount at
each balance sheet date

Borrowings are classified as current habiliies unless the Group has an unconditional nght to defer settlement of the
hability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet dale Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities, which are
not incremental costs relating to the actual draw-down of the facility, are recognised as a deduction from debt and
amortised on a straight-ine basis over the term of the facility

The farr value of financial assets and financial liabilites must be estmated for recognihon and measurement or for
disclosure purposes The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of trade recewables and payables are
assumed to approximate therr farr values The fair value of the Group’s interest rate swaps and other non-current
financial iabiliies 15 estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that 1s
available to the Group for ssmilar financial instruments The fair value of the Group’s current other financial habiihes are
assumed to approximate to therr book values

(q) Finance costs

Finance costs include interest on bank overdrafts and short term borrowings, amortisation of discounts or premiums to
borrowings, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of and commitment to, finance
faciites and finance lease charges

(r) Accounting for derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Group only enters into denvative financial instruments 1n order to minimise the Group's underlying exposures to
interest rate ngsk Denvatives are inihally recognised and measured at far value on the date a denvative contract 1s
entered into and subsequently measured at fair value

In order to quanfy for hedge accounting, the group Is required to document In advance the relationship between the
item being hedged and the hedging instrument The Group Is also reguired to document the relationship between the
hedged item and the hedging instrument and demonstrate that the hedge will be highly effective on an on-going basis
This effectiveness testing s re-performed at each penod end to ensure that the hedge remains highly effecive The
Group has only entered mto cash flow hedges dunng the penod

Gamns or losses on cash flow hedges that are regarded as highly effective are recogrnised n equity Where the forecast
transaction results in a financial asset or ability gains or losses previcusly recogrised in equity are reclassified to profit
or loss In the same penod as the asset or habiity affects profit or loss Where the forecasted transaction or commitment
results in a non financial asset or a liability, then any gains or losses previously deferred in equity are included in the
carrying amount of the related asset or hability If the forecasted transaction or commitment results in future iIncome or
expenditure, gains or losses deferred in equity are transferred to the income statement in the same penod as the
underlytng income or expenditure The ineffective portions of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument are not
recogmsed in equity, rather they are recognised immediately in profit or loss

For the portion of hedges deemed ineffective or transactions that do not qualify for hedge accounting under tAS 39, any
change in assets or abilities 1s recogmised immedately in the income statement Where a hedge no longer meets the
effectiveness cntena, any gams or losses deferred in equity are only transferred to the income statement when the
committed or forecasted transaction 1s recogmised in the iIncome statement However, where an entity apphed cash flow
hedge accounting for a forecasted or committed transaction that 1s no longer expected to occur, then the cumulative
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gain or loss that has been recorded in equity I1s transferred to the income statement When a hedging tnstrument
expires or Is sold, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and 1s recogmised when
the forecast transaction 1s ultimately recognised in the income statement

(s) Research and development projects
Research and development expenditure 1s recognised as an expense when incurred, except as discussed in note 1 ()
(t) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent habihties for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year
which are unpaid These amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition

{u)} Employee benefits

() Wages and salanes, annuai leave and sick leave

Liabilities for wages and salanes, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave expected
to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in other payables in respect of employees’ services
up to the reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the habilities are settled

(1) Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via the Novera Energy plc 2006 & 2007 Long Term
Incentive Plan {'LTIP") and in prior years under Novera Energy Australian incentive Option Plan (‘NEAIOP') which s no
longer operational at 31 December 2007

Share options granted after 7 November 2002 and vested after 1 January 2005

The farr value of options granted i1s recognised as an employee benefit expense with a corresponding increase 1n
equily The farr value 1s measured at grant date and recognised over the peniod dunng which the employee become
unconditronally entitled to the option

The fair value at grant date 1s independently determined using a Monte-Carlo pncing model for the 2006 & 2007 LTIP
The model takes into account the exercise prnice (where applicable), the term of the option, the vesting and
performance cntena, the impact of dilution, the non-tradeable nature of the option, the share pnce at grant date and
expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the nsk-free interest rate for the term
of the option

The fair value of the options granted excludes the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets) Non market-vesting conditions are included in the assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to become exercisable At each balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimate of the
number of optrons that are expected to become exercisable The employee benefit expense recognised each penod
takes into account the most recent estimate

Under the exercise of options, the balance of the share-based payments reserve relating to those options is transferred
to share capital

The market value of shares issued to employees for no cash consideration under the employee share scheme s
recogrised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in equity when the employees become
entitled to the shares

() Profit-shanng and bonus plans

The Group recognises a hability and an expense for bonuses and profit-sharing based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attnbutable to the Company's Shareholders after certain adjustments The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there 1s a past practice that has created a constructive obligation

(v) Retirement benefits

The Group participates on behalf of certan employees in the Industry Wide Coal Staff Superannuation pension
scheme, a final salary defined benefit pension scheme providing benefits based on final pensionable salary The
defined benefit scheme defines the amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, dependent
on one or more factors including age, years of service and salary This scheme has now been closed to new members
The last tnennial valuation was carmed out during 2006 by the Government Actuary's Department and has been
updated to 31 December 2007 by a qualfied independent actuary to take account of IAS19 requirements Under
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IAS19, the defined benefit surplus or deficit 1s included on the Group’s balance sheet Liabiliies are calculated based
on the current yields on high quality corporate bonds and on market conditions Surpluses are only included to the
extent that they are recoverable through reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the scheme

The current service cost and any past service costs are included in the Income Statement within staff costs The
expected return on the scheme assets, net of the impact of the unwinding of the discount on scheme habilitres, 15
included within staff costs

Actuanal gains and losses ansing from expenence adjustmenis and changes in actuanal assumptions are charged or
credited, each period to reserves

Past-service costs are recognised immedsately in income, unfess the changes to the pension plan are conditioned on
the employees remaining in senitce for a specified period of time (the vesting period) In this case, the past service
costs are amortised on a straight ine basis over the vesting penod

The Group also provides pension arrangements for employees and certain Directors who are members of the Fnends
Prowident Stakeholder defined contribution scheme Contnbutions for this scheme 1s charged to the income statement
in the penod in which they are payable

(w) Dividends

Dividend distnbution to the company's shareholders 1s recognised as a liability in the group's financial statements in the
penod in which the dividends are approved by the company's shareholders

(x} Earnings per share

() Basic eamings per share

Basic earnings per share I1s calculated by dividing the profit attnbutable to equity holders of the company, excluding any
costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
dunng the year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares 1ssued during the year

() Diluted earmings per share

Diluted earmings per share 1s calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares cutstanding to
assume the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares The Group has only LTIPs which may lead to a
contingently dilutive potential of ordinary shares No adjustment has been made to dilution for LTIPS due to contingent
nature

2 Financial nsk management

The Group's activities expose It to a variety of financial nisks such as market, economic, credit and liquidity (including
cash flow and interest rate nsk)

The Group's overall nsk management program focuses on the predictability of revenue and controi over operating
costs to maximise the financial performance of the Group The unpredictability of financial markets 1s rmirimised by the
use of financial mstruments to hedge certain nsk exposures Our polictes reguire us to prepare a nsk management
plan that 1s reviewed by the Board

(a) Market rnisk

The majonty of electncity generated s supplied under contractual arrangements which are erther fixed price or fully or
partially RP1 index inflated The remainder of electncity generated i1s sold at market related prnices which are subject to
market fluctuations

(b) Economic nsk

The renewable energy businesses are supported through the UK Government renewable energy targets legislation
The Group actively promotes imhiatives with Government tn relation to developing sustainable energy projects
Successful involvement in such initiatives aids in presenting to Government bodies the concept that renewable energy
can be a wiable alternative to other methods of generating energy and aids in maintaining therr future support Future
amendment of such legislation may either benefit or detract from the Group’s profitability

{c) Credit nsk
The Group has no signfficant concentrations of credit nsk and no credit imits were exceeded during the financial year

35



(d) Ligidity including cash flow and interest nsk

The debt faciity held by the Group 1s on a non-recourse project finance basis The Group manages its cash flow
interest-rate nsk by using floating to fixed interest rates swaps Such interest rate swaps have the economic benefit of
converting 99 per cent of the Group’s borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates Under the interest-rate swaps, the
Group agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals (bi-annually), the difference between fixed contract
rates and floating rate interest amounts calculated by reference to the agreed notional principal amounts

The Group has used swaps rather than raising fixed rate borrowings as using the existing floating rate borrowing
facilities and entenng into a fixed interest rate swap was a more efficient method of raising the debt necessary to fund
the group's capital intensive operations The difference between the floating interest rate and the agreed fixed interest
rate amounts on the notional principal of £88,990,000 15 settled on a half yearly basis

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on histoncal expenence and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances

The Group has made cnitical accounting estimates and judgements in relation to the capitaisation of pre-construction
costs and in the fair value of the intangible asset acquired

Pre-construction costs, associated with reaching the consented planning stage, are capitalised where, in the opinion of
the Directors, the related project 1s likely to be successfully developed and the economic benefits ansing from future
operations will at least equal the amount of capitalised expenditure incurred to date

On acquistion of NMRE far value adjustments have been identfied relating to Energy Usage Rights, within the
intangible assets acquired The fair value has been derived using a discounted cash flow method over the expected
useful iife of the assets To comply with IFRS 3 the valuation has been adjusted for tax The fair value adjustment has
been recognrsed In a revaluation reserve

The Group 15 not exposed to any other matenal adjustments for accounting eshimates, judgements or assumptions
except through whether its intangible assets have suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 1 (@) The recoverable amounts of cash generating units have been determined on a value In use
calculation
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4 Segment information
(1) Accounting policies

Segment information 1s prepared i conformity with the accounting pohictes of the entity as disclosed in note 1
and IFRS accounting standards IFRS 8 Operating Segments

Segment revenues, expenses, assets and llabibties are those directly attnibutable to a segment and the relevant
poriton that can be allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis Segment habilities consist primanly of trade
and other creditors, employee benefits and deferred revenue

{a} Description of segments
Operating segments

The Group 1s orgamsed into the following segments all of which operate in the UK and form the basis of
reporting for management and the Board

Landfilt Gas

The Landfill gas segment operates and maintains reciprocating engine elecincity generators, fuelled by the
methane gas extracted from landfill sites across the UK

Hydro
The Hydroelectne segment operates and mantains hydroelectnc generators at sites across the UK

Wind
The wind farms generate electricity through the use of a turbine wind farm in Wales

Industnal and Water Services

The Industnal and Water Services segment includes the Water Services business, which manages the thermal
processing of sewage sludge for several UK water utiibies, on a contract basis  Industnal division operates one
diesel-powered generation ‘stand-by’ site

{b) Pnmary reporting format - operating segments

Landfill gas Hydro Wind Industnal & Consolidated
Water
Services

2007 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Sales to external customers 25,403 2,758 1,579 2,408 32,148
Operating expenses (14,238) (533) (367) (2,101) {(17.239)
Adusted EBITDA 11,165 2,225 1,212 307 14,909
Depreciation and amortisation expense (7,267) (1,205) (873) 2 (9,347)
Share of net profit of joint venture entity 259 - - - 259
Segment assets 119,125 31,388 29,017 303 179,834
Segment habilities 94,175 20,741 7,607 82 122,605
Fixed asset additions 2,843 55 9,527 - 12,225

A reconciiation of adjusted EBITDA to loss before tax 1s provided as follows

2007

£000
Adjusted EBITDA 14,909
Other income 25
Central administration costs {3,505)
Pre-construction costs (1,179
Depreciation and amertisation costs (9,347)
Net interest (payable) {4,698)
Share of net profit of joint ventures 259
Loss before tax {3,5386)
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Novera's main customers are the UK Government's Non Fossil Purchase Agency (NFPA) (revenue £12 2
milion), and energy retailers EON (revenue £6 1 million), Centrica (revenue £5 6 milhon) and N Power Through
our Water Services, Novera delivers and operations and maintenance services for Kelda Water Services and
sludge drying and dewatering faciities in Cardiff, Newport and Port Talbot, as well as to Seafield Sewage

Treatment Works for Veoha Water

Landfill gas Hydro Wind Industrnal & Consohidated
Water
Services
2006 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Sales tc external customers - - - 2,183 2,183
Operating expenses - - - (1,881) (1,881)
Adjusted EBITDA - - - 302 302
Share of net profit of joint venture entity 36 - - - 36

Segmental analysis of assets £20 4 millon and habilities £4 7 million 1s not available and in the opinion of the

Directors the cost to obtain it would be excessive Total additions in the year were £22,000

A reconciiation of adjusted EBITDA to loss before tax 1s provided as follows

Adjusted EBITDA

Other income

Central admirmistration costs
Pre-construction costs

Depreciation and amartisation costs
Net interest receivable

Share of net profit of joint ventures
Loss before tax

5 Other income

Advisory fees
Release of deferred revenue

6 Loss before income taxation

Loss before income tax includes the following
specific expenses
Employee benefits expense (note 7)
Restructunng costs
Amortisation (note 11}
Depreciation {note 12)
Profit on disposal of fixed assets
Other operating lease rentals payabile
Plant and machinery
Property
Net foreign exchange losses recognised in loss
before income tax for the year

2006
£000

302

1,133

(2,249)

(2.405)

(33)

200

36

(3.016)
2007 2006
£000 £'000
25 980
- 153
25 1,133
2007 2006
£000 £'000
5,788 2,462
652 130
4,072 -
5,259 33
16 180
221 16
180 170
(3 9
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6 Loss before income taxation (Continued)

During the year the group (including its overseas subsidianes} obtained the following services from the company's
auditor and its associates

2007 2006
£000 £'000

Audit services
Statutory audit 112 68
GCther assurance services - 161

Tax services

Comphance services 30 9
142 238

It 15 the Groups' policy to employ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“PwC"™) on assignments additional tc therr
statutory audit duties where PwC expertise and experience with the Group are important

The fees earned by PwC in respect of other assurance services were £nil in 2007 |n 2006 other Assurance
services represented the provision of services associated with the acquisition of the remaining 50 per cent of
NMRE PwC provided both taxation and accounting advice in relation to the acquisition

PwC 15 awarded assignments on a competitive basis It 1s the Group policy to seek competitive tenders for all
major consulting projects The ACC of the Groups’ beard has determined that PwC s and acts independently of
the Group in its role as statutory auditors

7 Employee information

2007 2006

£000 £'000
The average monthly number of persons (including executive directors) employed by the group
durning the period was

Production 124 72
Administration 34 6
Directors 2 1
160 79

Staff costs (for the above persons)
Wages and salarnes 5,023 2,110
Socral secunty costs 538 261
Pension costs (note 29) 227 N
5,788 2,462

8 Finance costs

2007 2006
£'000 £°000
Interest payable and similar charges
Interest payable on bank borrowings 5,548 2
Amortisation of issue costs of bank borrowings 96 -
5,644 2
Interest receivable 946 202
Net finance costs 4,698 200
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9 Income Tax Expense

2007 2006
£000 £000

(a) Analysis of charge 1n the penod
Current tax - -
Deferred tax {1,578) -
(1,578) -

(b) Tax reconciliation

The difference between the iIncome tax expense shown above and the amount calculated by applying the
standard rate of UK Corporation Tax 1s as follows

2007 2006
£'000 £'000
Loss on ordinary activities before tax (3,536) (3,016)
Loss on ordinary activities multiphed by rate of
corporation tax in the UK of (30%) (2006 30%) {1,061) {905)
Effects of
Adjustments to tax in respect of prior penod 132 -
Recogniticn of previously unrecognised losses (976)
Eftect of change of corporate tax rate of deferred tax 141 10
balances
Non-deductible share-based payment expense - 26
Effect of tax on joint venture 78 1)
Taxable distribution - 480
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 108 5
{1,578) (395)
Future iIncome tax expense not brought to account - 305
{1,578) -

Tax losses previously unrecognised in the Group have now been brought onto the balance sheet as deferred tax
assets There 1s now sufficient evidence of taxable profits ansing in the Group to allow the utilisation of these
losses i this and subsequent account periods

Deferred tax has not been recognised on tax losses incurred in Austrahia which may only be recoverable against

Australtan sourced income should there be sufficient taxable profits ansing from approprrate trades (2007 £1 3
million, 2006 £1 3 million)
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10 Earnings per share

As explained in note 1 (x} basic eamings per share have been calculated by dividing the earnings attnbutable to
ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares i 1ssue dunng the penod, excluding
own shares held in the employee share trusts which have been treated as cancelled

Earnings per share attributable to the equity holders
2007 20086
Loss Weighted Loss per Loss Weighted Loss per
average number share average number share
of shares of shares

£000 ‘000 Pence £'000 ‘000 Pence
Basic ioss per share {1,958) 119,822 {16) (3,018) 54,846 (585)
Diluted loss per share {1,958) 119,822 {(16) (3,016) 54,996 (55

The impact of the LTIP has not been shown as it 1s anti-dilutive  Share capital of Novera Energy plc and
Novera Energy Limited have been treated as the same n order to calculate the weighted average number of

shares

11 Intangible Assets

Cost

At 1 January 2007

Acquisition of Subsidianes (note 28)
Goodwill on acquisition (note 28)
At 31 December 2007

Amortisation

At 1 January 2007
Charge for the year
At 31 December 2007

Net Book Value at 31 December 2006
Net Book Value at 31 December 2007

Energy Usage Rights Goodwill Total
Land Fill
Gas Hydro Wind

£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000

58,377 15,488 9,407 - 83,272

- - - 3,434 3,434

58,377 15,488 9,407 3,434 86,706
(3,233) (379) (460) - 4,072)

(3,233) (379) (4600 - {4,072)

55,144 15,109 8,947 3,434 82,634

The intangible assets associated with energy usage nghts have been determined from the different fuel
sources of generation on a site by site basis The gas field nghts and wind nights are being amortised on a
straight-line basis over up to 20 years, with hydro nghts over 40 years These penods are the average lifetme

over which the rights exist

The fair value of the intangible has been denved using a discounted cash flow method over the expected useful

Iife of the assets The far value adjustment has been recognised in a revaluation reserve refer to note 28
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12 Property, plant & equipment

Cost

At 1 January 2007

Acquisition of subsichanes (note 28}
Addittons

Transfers

Disposals

At 31 December 2007

Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 January 2007

Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 December 2007

Net Book Value at 31 December 2006
Net Book Value at 31 December 2007

Cost

At 1 January 2006
Additions

At 31 December 2006

Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 January 20086

Charge for the year
Disposals

Revaluations

Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2006

Assets Pre-
Fixtures Wind under construct-
and Plant and farm construct- on
Fittings machinery assets 1ion Assets Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
70 56 - - - 126
40 55,941 12,345 1,625 - 69,951
237 97 - 10,102 1,789 12,225
- 2,484 - (2,484) - -
- (571) - - - (571)
347 58,007 12,345 9,243 1,789 81,731
35 15 - - - 50
71 4,575 613 - - 5,259
106 4,590 613 - - 5,309
35 41 - - - 76
241 53,417 11,732 9,243 1,789 76,422
Assets Pre-
Fixtures under construct
and Plant and Wind farm  construct- -10n Total
Fittings machinery assets ien Assets
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
46 56 - - - 102
24 - - - - 24
70 56 - - - 126
13 4 - - - 17
22 11 - - - 33
35 15 - - - 50
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13 Investments in Joint Ventures

On 22 January 2007 the remaining 50 per cent of NMRE was acquired by Novera, refer to Note 28 for further
information Up to 22 January 2007 the interest in NMRE was accounted for in the consohdated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting The pnincipal actity of NMRE was to operate renewable energy assets

2007 2006
£000 £'000
At 1 January 2007
Net assets 14,608 15,320
Movement JV reserves (note 26) 453 1,720
Other equity movements - {2,468)
Share of profits retained 259 36
15,320 14,608
Transfer to investment in subsidiary upon acquisition
of remaining 50% of NMRE (15,320) -
At 31 December 2007 (Net assets) - 14,608

in relation to the group's interests in joint ventures, the assets, lliabilities, income and expenses are shown below

2007 2006

£'000 £'000

Current assets - 56,804
Long-term assets - 11.606
Current llabiities - (8,810}
Long-term habilities - (44,992)
- 14,608

Income - 15,176
Expenses - (15,971)
- (795)

Tax . 831
Share of post tax results from joint ventures - 36
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14 Non-current assets — Receiwvables

2007 2006
Leng term receivable 700 785
700 785

Long term recewvable at 31 December 2007 and 2006 relates to the deferred consideration on the sale of the
Arpley Facility

15 Trade and other receivables

2007 2006
Trade receivables and accrued income 5,784 327
Other debtors 514 185
Prepayments 454 755
7.752 1,267

Included in other debtors above 1s £336,000 due from a related party (refer to note 31)

1) Currency and Doubtful Debt Allowance
All of the Group’'s trade and other receivables are denominated in sterling At 31 December all debts were
considered recoverable and therefore there 1s no allowance for doubtful debts (2006 nil)

n) Aged Analysis of Trade Receivables
Trade recevables that are past due but not impaired are aged as follows

2007 2006

£000 £'000

Up to 3 months 58 1
3 to 6 months 22 2
80 3
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16 Denvative financial instruments
Fair values of derivative financial instruments

2007 2006

Assets Assets

£'000 £000

Interest rate swaps — current portion 642 -
Interest rate swaps - non current portion - -
Total 642 -

Interest rate swaps

The Group utiises denvative financial instruments in the normal course of business in order to hedge its exposure
to fluctuations in interest rates On 22 January 2007 on acquisition of NMRE the Group acquired interest swaps on
the £92 1 million syndicated |loan facility

Bank loans of the Group currently bear an average vanable interest rate of LIBOR plus margin It 1s policy to
protect at least 90 per cent of the loans from exposure to increasing interest rates Accordingly, the Group has
entered Into Interest rate swap contracts under which it 1s obliged to receve interest at varnable rates and pay
interest at fixed rates

At 31 December 2007, swaps In place cover approximately 89 per cent of the loan pnnciple outstanding and are
timed to expire as each loan repayment falls due The fixed interest rates varied between 4 9 per cent and 5 3 per
cent and the vanable rates are based on LIBOR

The contracts require settlement of net interest recevable or payable every six months The settlement dates
coincide with the dates on which interest 1s payable on the underlying debt The contracts are settled on a net
basis

The gain or loss from re-measurning the hedge instruments at fair value i1s deferred in equity in the hedging reserve,
to the extent that the hedge 1s effective, and reclassified inte profit and loss when the hedged interest expense s
recognised The ineffective portion 1s recognised in the income statement immediately

The notional principal amount of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts at 31 December 2007 was
£88,990,427

17 Cash and cash equivalents

2007 2006

£°000 £'000

Cash at bank and in hand 356 1,060
Short term bank deposits 3,954 2,633
Restricted cash 6,453 -
10,803 3,693

The Group has restrncted cash for the NMRE facility loan of £5 0 million, which relates to the principal and
interest payments payable on 30 June 2008 and £1 5 million relating to the Lissett loan facility

The effective interest rate on short-term deposits was 4 75 per cent (2006 3 85 per cent)
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18 Trade and other payables — current

2007 2006
£'000 £000
Trade payables 2,970 542
Other tax and social secunty payable 267 266
Qther creditors 676 -
Accruals 6,162 1,174
10,075 1,982
19 Borrowings
2007 2006
£'000 £000
Current
Bank loans and overdrafts due within one year or
on demand {4.634) -
{4,634) -
2007 2006
£000 £'000
Non-current
Bank loans _(83,276) -
(83,276) -

On 22 January 2007 on acquisition of NMRE the Group acquired a syndicated loan facility of £92,115,000 The
syndicated loan facility 1s secured by a floating rate charge over the assets of the Novera Energy (Holdings 2)
Limited Group, a subsidiary of the Group, which compnses of substantally all the tangible and intangible assets
of the acquired Group

The Lissett loan facility has yet to be drawn down

Bank loans are stated net of unamortised 1ssue costs of £1,081,000 These costs are allocated to the profit and
loss account over the 20 year term of the Iife of the asset at a constant rate on the carrying amount

The effective interest rates of the above borrowings as at the balance sheet date was 6 3 per cent

Fair value of non-current borrowings 2007 2006
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Long term borrowings {83,276) {82,557) -

The fair value of other financial assets and financial habilities equals their carrying value
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Matunity of financal lrabihties

The matunty profile of the carrying amount of the group’s non-current liabilities, at 31 December 2007 was as follows
2007 2006

Debt Debt

£000 £000

In more than one year but not more than two years (4.634) -
In more than two years but not more than five years (19,492) -
In more than five years (63,784) -

(87,910) -

Undrawn Facilities

The Group has an undrawn revolving credit facility within the syndicated loan facilites of £6 milhon  This
expires December 2008 The Group also has an undrawn facility of £31 5 million nngfenced for the construction
of Lissett

20 Deferred revenue

2007 2006

£000 £°000

Deferred revenue - current - 154
Deferred revenue — non-current - 2,605
- 2,759

21 Deferred tax
Deferred tax s calculated in full on temporary differences under the lability method using a tax rate of 28 per cent (2006 30
per cent)

2007 2006
£'000 £'000

At 1 January 2007 - -
Acquisition (note 28) (25,161) -
Profit and loss credit 1,578 -
At 31 December 2007 (23,583) -

Accelerated Energy Usage Total

tax Rights

depreciation
Deferred tax habilities £'000 £'000 £°000
At 1 January 2007 - - -
Acqursition of subsidiary {1,845) (23,316) (25,161)
Charged/(credited) to profit and loss account (384) 1,081 897
At 31 December 2007 (2,229) {22,235) (24,464)

Share Based Tax losses Total

payments

Deferred tax assets £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2007 - - -
Charged to profit and loss account 86 795 881
At 31 December 2007 86 795 881
Net deferred tax hability At 31 December 2007 (2,143) (21,440) (23,583}

Net deferred tax lability At 31 December 2006
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22 Called up share capital

At 1 January 2006
Exercise of Options
At 31 December 2006

At 1 January 2007

issue of shares (net of transaction costs)

Closing position Novera Energy Limited

Opening position Novera Energy plc
Exercise of Options
At 31 December 2007

Number of Ordinary Merger Total
Shares Shares Reserve £000
‘000 £'000 £000
54,801 32,211 - 32211
66 32 - 32
54,867 32,243 - 32,243
54,867 32,243 - 32,243
69,091 35,883 - 35,883
123,958 68,126 68,126
123,958 6,198 61,928 68,126
100 5 51 56
124,058 6,203 61,979 68,182

Novera Energy plc was incorporated on 15 March 2007 and on 28 May 2007 under a scheme of arrangement
approved by shareholders and the Australian Supreme Court New South Wales replaced Novera Energy
Limited (incorporated in Australia} as the parent company of the group The shareholders and therr interests in
the business iImmed:ately before and after this arrangement were the same

The total number of authonsed ordinary shares 1s 200 0 million {2006 54 9 milion shares) and 1ssued 1s 124 1
milion shares (2006 54 9 milllon shares) with a par value of £0 05 per share All 1ssued shares are fully pad

The Company issued 69 1 million shares on the acquisition of 50% of NMRE raising £38 0 milhon  £2 1 million
of costs were incurred associated with this share 1ssue

The Employee’s Share Option Plan 1s discussed further under note 24 100,000 of options were exercised on

18 September 2007 at £0 56

23 Prnincipal Subsidiary Undertakings

The following investments were held at 31 December 2007

% of equity
Country of ordinary shares &

Name of Company incorporation | Nature of Business voting nghts held

Novera Energy Ltd Austraha Intermediate holding company 100%

Novera Renewable Energy Ltd Bermuda Intermediate helding company 100% 2

Novera Energy (Holdings 1) Limited

(formally NM Renewable Energy

(Holdings 1) Lirited) UK Intermediate holding company 100% 2

Novera Energy (Holdings 2) Limited

(formally NM Renewable Energy

(Holdings 2) Limited) UK Intermediate holding company 100% 2
Generation of electncity from renewable

Novera Energy Generaticn No 1 Limited UK energy sources 100% 2
Generation of electnaity from renewable

Novera Energy Generation No 2 Limited UK energy sources 100% 2
Generation of electneity from renewable

Novera Energy Generation No 3 Limited UK energy sources 100% 2

Novera Energy Services (UK) Limited UK Operation of water services 100% *
Development of renewable energy

Novera Energy Ventures Limited UK projects 100% 2
Construction of wind farm and

Lissett Awrfield Wind Farm Limited UK generation of electricity from wind 100% *

[1} Shares held by the Company
[2] Shares held by the Group

All the subsidianes above are included in the Group consolidation
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24 Share-based payments

Employee Long Term Incentive Plan

In July 2006 Novera Energy Limited established a Long Term Incentive Plan ('LTIP'") 1s a scheme based on a three
year rolling plan LTIP awards are conditicnal grants of shares that will be released upon the Novera Energy Limited
meeting the required cntena Such a policy should ensure that key management personnel do not denve
compensation benefits without providing a direct contnbution to the long-term supenor performance of the Group

The 2007 LTIP award has a payout of shares in 2010 and 1s dependent on the Group's performance against a total
shareholder return measure relative to the FTSE Small Cap Index for the UK (2006 LTIP award has a payout of
shares in 2009 dependent on performance agamst a total shareholder return measure relative to the FTSE Small
Cap index for the UK and operating cash flow targets to end of 2008 )

Set out below are summaries of shares awarded under the plan to employees and key management personnel

Award date Expiry of Balance of share Shares awarded Performance/ Balance of share which
Award which may vest at | which may vest at vesting may vest at target
Period target target Penod performance* at
performance” at performance* 34 December2007
1 January 2007
24/04/2007 30/05/2010 - 01/01/2007 -
1,410,000 31/12/2009 1,410,000
1,105,000 01/01/2006 -
P - 1,1
14/07/2008 30/05/2009 31/12/2008 105,000
*Number of shares which may vest at maximum performance = 157 per cent of shares which may vest at
target performance

Total expenses arsing from LTIP share-based payment transactions recognised during the period as part of
employee benefit expenses was £308,000 (2006 £62,000)

The weighted average farr value share pnce of the LTIPs granted dunng the penod was £0 55 in 2007 (2006
£0 34) The significant inputs into the model were weighted average share pnce of £0 695 1n 2007 (2006 £0 54) at
grant date, volatiity of 26 7% (2006 28 6%), dividend yield 0% (2006 0%), and an annual nsk free rate of 4 2%
(2006 £4 2%) The volatiily measured at the standard deviation of continuously compounded share returns Is
based on statistical analysis of daily share prices over the last three years

At 31 December 2007, awards under the LTIPs related to shares in Novera Energy plc regardless of the penod to
which the LTIP relates

Employee Optron Plan

Under the Novera Energy Australian Incentive Option Plan, eligible employees, at the discretion of the Board, were
offered share options in the Novera Energy Limited at a pnce determined by the Board The aggregate of shares
which would be acquired, if all outstanding options were exercised, must not exceed 10 per cent of the total number
of 1ssued shares The options granted under the plan carry no dividend or voting nghts When exercisable, each
option 1s convertible into one ordinary share There are no ophiens outstanding at 31 December 2007

Set out below are summares of options granted under the plan to employees and key management personnel

2007
Grant date Expiry date Exercise Balance at  (Exercised Expired Balance at
pnce start of year )/granted dunngthe end of
dunng the year year
year
£ Number Number Number
Number

13 Dec 00 12 June 07 050 100,000  (100,000) - -
10 May 08 31 Dec 07 670 50,000 (50,000) -
150,000  (100,000) (50,000) -

Weighted average exercise price £059 £0 50 £0 64
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2006
Grant date Expiry date Exercise
pnce
£

13 Dec 00 12 June 07 053
23 Jan 01 23Jan 06 050
14 Mar 01 14 Mar 06 091
28 MarQ1 28 Mar 08 050
31 Dec 03 25 May 06 0 64
10 May 06 31 Dec 07 070

Weighted average exercise price

Balance at  (Exercised Expired Balance at

start of year )/granted dunng the end of

duning the year year
year
Number Number Number Number

100,000 - - 100,000
69,886 - {69,886} -
79,204 - {79,204) -
163,841 (66,000) {97.841) -
50,000 - {50,000) -
- 50,000 - 50,000
462,931 (16,000) (296,931) 150,000
£0 59 £050 £063 £059

There were 100,000 options exercised dunng the financial period at £0 50 The weighted average share pnce at

the dale of exercise of options exercised during the year ended 31 December 2007 was £0 56(2006 £0 64)

25 Accumulated Losses

Note
At 1 January 2007
Loss attrnbutable to members
Movement in Revaluation Reserve 26

At 31 December 2007

2007 2006
£000 £000
(17,088) (14,072)
(1,958) (3,016}
694 -
(18,352) (17,088)
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26 Other Reserves

Note Share Joint Hedging Revaluat Total
Based Venture reserve on reserves
payment reserve reserve

reserve
Group £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2006 14 (1,287) - - {(1,273)
Option expense 86 - - - 86
Share of movement in - 1,720 - - 1,720
reserves
At 31 December 2006 100 433 - - 533
At 1 January 2007 100 433 - - 533
Share of movement in 13
joint venture reserve - 453 - - 453
Acquisttion of subsidiary 28 - (886) 886 8,394 8,394
Share based payment 24
expense 308 - - - 308
Expiry of options 24 (32) - - - (32)
Exercise of options 24 (6) - - - (6)
Transfer to retarned 25 (694) (694)
profits
Movement in hedging
reserve - - {1,557) _(1,557)
31 December 2007 370 - {671) 7,700 7,399

Nature and purpose of reserves

(1) Share-based payment reserve The share-based payment reserve Is used to recognise the fair value of
options 1ssued but not exercised

(1} Joint venture reserve The joint venture reserve 1s used to recognise the Groups' share of reserves
{mainly hedging) in joint ventures

(1) Hedging reserve The hedging reserve i1s used to recognise the far value of financial instruments in
place within the entity

(1v) Revaluation reserve The revaluation reserve has ansen on the fair vatue review of the intangible

27 Cash flow from operating activities

2007 2006

£'000 £'000
Loss from ordinary activities before income tax (3,536) (3,018)
Depreciation 5,275 a3
Amortisation 4,072 -
Foreign exchange differences (6) -
Retease of discounted deferred revenue (2) {153)
Interest income (946) {202)
Interest expense 5,644 2
Completion payment - 25
Share of profits of associates and JV partnerships not
received as dividends or distnbutions (259) (36)
Decrease /(increase) in receivables 969 (256)
(Decrease)fincrease in trade payables (554) 910
Decrease in share based payments reserve 276 86
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 10,933 (2,607)
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28 Acquisitions

On 22 January 2007 Novera acquired the remaining 50 per cent of the share capital of Novera Macquane Renewable
Energy Limited (NMRE) from Macquarie Renewable Limited (MRL), a 100 per cent owned subsidiary of Macguane
Internatronal Infrastructure Fund NMRE was established as a 50 50 Joint Venture between Novera Energy Ltd and
MRL in December 2004 From 22 January 2007 the results have been 100 per cent consolidated

The acquired business contributed revenues of £29 8 million and net profit of £1 3 rmilhon to the Group for the penod 22
January 2007 to 31 December 2007 If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2007, Group revenue would have
been £34 4 milhion and net loss after tax of £2 1 miliion

The acquistion has been accounted for using the step acquisition method with the deferred revenue relating to the
onginal 50% being reclassified as goodwill and changes to fair value relating to the previously owned 50 per cent
accounted for as revaluations The purchase price adjustments relate to the settlement of outstanding disputes in
respect of the consideration paid in 2004 and 2005, received in cash during the year

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows
Pnor investments in NMRE

£000
Cost 18,542
Fair Value of net assets acquired {18,542)
Reclassification of deferred revenue (2,756)
Purchase price adjustments ansing in 2007 {1.097)
(3.853)

Acquisition of additional 50% January 2007
Cash Pad 30,000
Direct costs relating to acquisition 1,002
Cost of investment 31,002
Farr Value of net assets acquired (23,715)
7,287
Goodwill on acquisition 3,434

The acquisition was funded through the i1ssue of 69 1 million shares raising £38 0 milion £2 1 mulhon of costs were
incurred associated with this share issue

The directors reviewed the book values of the assets and
liabilities acquired and have made the following adjustments

Acquiree’'s
Carrying Fair value
Fair value amount Adjustment
£000 £'000 £'000

Cash and cash equivalents 10,625 10,625 -
Property, plant and equipment (Note 12) 69,951 69,951 -
Energy Usage Rights (included in intangibles) (Note 11) 83,272 42,753 40,519
Investment in Joint Ventures (Note 13) - 414 (414)
Trade and other recevables 7.396 7,396 -
Financial Assets 2,178 2,178 -
Trade and other payables (8,541) (8,541) -
Retrement benefit obligation (i175) (175) -
Borrowings (92,118) (92,115) -
Deferred tax habilities (Note 21) (25,161) (1,845) (23,316)
Net assets 47,430 30.641 16,788
Previously held (23,715)
Net assets acquired (50% ) 23,715
Purchase consideration settled in cash 31,002
Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiary acquired (10,625)

20,377

The fair value adjustment 15 £16,789,000 on acquisiion 50 per cent (£8,394,000) has been recognised in the
revaluation reserve
There were no acquisitions In the year ended 31 December 2006

52



/ ——

29 Pensions

The Group operates a defined benefit pension scheme with assets held in a separately administered fund In addition, the
majonty of employees are members of the Fnends Prowvident Stakeholder defined contnbutions pension scheme

Defined contributions for the year ended 31 December 2007 were £227,000 (2006 £91,000)

Defined benefit pension scheme
The defined benefit scheme relating to NMRE accounted for as an acquisition from 22 January 2007

An actuanal valuation of the Industry Wide Coal Staff Superannuation pension scheme using the prejected unit basis was

carried out dunng 2006 by the Government Actuary's Department, consulting actuanes An Actuanal report updated for
the year ended 31 December 2007 in accordance with IAS 19 has been prepared for the Annual Report

The amounts recognised n the balance sheet are determined as follows

2007
£000
Present value of funded cbligations (904)
Fair value of plan assets 748
Liabihity
in the balance sheet (156)
2007
£000
Beginning of year -
Acquisition of subsrdiaries 863
Current service cost 35
Interest cost 45
Actuanal losses (39)
End of year 904
The movement in the fair value of plan assets of the year is as follows
2007
£'000
Beginning of year -
Acquisttion of subsidianes 688
Expected return on plan assets 53
Contnbutions employer and employee 24
Actuanal losses {17)
End of year 748
The amounts recognised In the Income statement are as follows
2007
£'000
Current service cost 29
Interest cost 45
Expected return on plan assets (53)
Total included in staff costs (note 7) 21
The major assumptions used by the actuanes are
2007
%
Future salary increases 42
Future pension increases 32
Discount rate 56
Inflation rate 32
Expected return on plan assets at year end 75

Assumptions regarding future mortalty expenence are set based on advice in accordance with published
statistics and expenence

The average life expectancy of a pensioner retinng af age 60 on the balance sheet date 15 21 3 years for current
pensioners and 22 3 years for future pensioners
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30 Operating lease commitments

Operating leases — motor vehicles

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-canceliable operating leases are as follows

2007
£'000
Within one year 171
Between two and five years 101
Greater than five years -

2006
£000
11

11

272

22

2007
£'000
Operating leases — other

2006
£'000

The future aggregate mimimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

69
86

Within one year 148
Between two and five years 230
Greater than five years 90

468

155

31 Related party transactions

The Group has an interest in an immatenal joint venture Durning the year the joint venture was charged by Novera £294,000
of management charges as an arms length transaction At 31 December 2007 a receivable of £336,000 1s due from this joint

venture

The above balance 1s not secured and 1s required to be settled in cash No guarantees have been received in respect of
these balances No bad debt provisions have been made against the above balances and the bad and doubtful debt expense

in the year in respect of these balances was Enil

32 Capital Commitments

The Group has a letter of credit of £21 8 million nng fenced for the construction of Lissett

33 Events occurring after reporting date

Further to the Company's announcement on 15 February 2008 the Company Is continuing negotiations with 31 Infrastructure
concerning a possible cash offer for the entire 1ssued and to be 1ssued share capital of Novera at a price of 90 pence per share

In seeking to address one of the pre-condittons noted In the announcement by the Company on 15 February 2008, Novera
approached Waste Recycling Group Limited (*WRG") requesting consent to a potential change of control in certain leases and
icenses Court proceedings have now been commenced for a determination of this 1ssue Novera were informed on 22
February 2008 that WRG had appointed Infinis Limited as its agent in respect of the matter before the court The heanng on this

matter 1s to take place on 7 and 8 Apnl 2008

On 17 March 2006 the Board of Novera also announced that on 18 February 2008 it received an approach from Infinis

Acquisitions Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NOVERA ENERGY PLC

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Novera Energy plc for the period
ended 31 December 2007 which comprise the Balance Sheet and the related notes These
parent company financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out
therein

We have reported separately on the group financial statements of Novera Energy pic for the
year ended 31 December 2007

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors' responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the parent company financial
statements 1n accordance with applicable iaw and United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement of
Directors’ Responsibilities

Qur responsibility 1s to audit the parent company financial statements in accordance with
relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the company's
members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no
other purpose We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come
save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in wnting

We report to you our opinion as to whether the parent company financial statements give a true
and fair view and whether the parent company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We also report to you whether in our
opinion the information given in the Directors' Report 1s consistent with the parent company
financial statements

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the company has not kept proper accounting
records, If we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or
if information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions 15 not
disclosed The information given in the Directors’ Report includes that specific information
presented in the Operating Review and the Financial Review that 1s cross referred from the
Review of operations section of the Directors' Report

We read other information contamned i the Annual Report and consider whether it 1S consistent
with the audited parent company financial statements The other information comprises only
The other information compnses only the Chairman’s Report, the Operating Review, Financial
Review, the Directors, the Corporate Governance Statement, the Directors Report, and the
Remuneration Report We consider the implications for our report If we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the parent company financial
statements Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information

Basis of audit opimion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis,
of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the parent company financial
statements It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by
the directors in the preparation of the parent company financial staternents, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances, consistently apphed and
adequately disclosed
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We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which
we considered necessary In order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the parent company financial statements are free from matenal misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error In formmg our opinion we also evaluated
the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the parent company financial
statements

Opinion
0 our opiion

+ the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, Iin accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of the company's
affairs as at 31 December 2007,

+ the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 1985, and

the information given In the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the parent company financial
statements

/ww& &

PncewaterhouseCoopefs LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Manchester

17 March 2068
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Novera Energy plc
Company Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2007

Note 2007
£000
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments 2 68,306
68,306
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 3 56
Net current assets 56
Net assets 68,362
Equity
Ordinary shares 4 6,203
Merger reserve 4 61,879
Other Reserves 5 180
Total Equity 68,362

The Company has not presented its own profit and loss account as permitted by section 230 of the
Companmes Act 1985 The profit for the year was £nil

The Company has taken the exemption from preparing a cash flow statement under the terms of FRS 1
(revised 1896) ‘Cash flow statements’

The Company has no recogrised gains/(losses) other than those included in the profit and loss account
and therefore no Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses has been presented

The financial statements on pages 60 to 63 were authonsed by the Board of Directors on 17 March 2008
and were signed on its behalf by

BN e T //ﬁ.@/'é__

Dawid Fitzsimmons Rory Quinlan
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Novera Energy plc
Notes to the Company Financial Statements
31 December 2007

1 Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting polictes adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below

(a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared on the going concermn basis under the histonca!l cost
convention and in accordance with the Compantes Act 1985 and applicable accounting standards in the
United Kingdom A summary of the more important Company accounting policies, which have been
appled consistently, s set out below

Novera Energy plc was incorporated in the United Kingdem on 15 March 2007
(b) Investments
tnvestments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less any provision for impairment in value

{¢) Related party transactions
The company has taken advantage of the exemption permitted by FRS 8 not to disclose any transactions
or balances that are part of the Novera Energy plc

{d) Dividends

Interim dividends are recognised when paid and final dividends are bocked as a ability when they are
approved by the members passing a wntten resoluhon Dividends paid are not disclosed on the face of the
profit and loss account but as a distnibution out of profit and loss reserves

{e) Foreign currency translation

(1)) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included In the financial statements are measured using the currency of the pnmary economic
environment 1n which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’) The Company financial statements are
presented in GBP which 1s Novera Energy plc's functional and presentational currency The Directors of
the Company have adopted GBP as its presentational currency as they believe it 1s the most relevant
currency which reflects the nsk and returns associated with the operations of the Company as the
significant operations of the Company are erther UK based or controlied from the UK

(n) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and habiittes denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement, except when
deferred in equity as gualfying cash flow hedges and qualfying net investment hedges

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as investments in associates and joint venture
entities accounted for using the equity method, are reported as part of the far value gain or loss

f} Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recogrised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amorbised cost, less
provision for doubtful debts All trade debtors are recewvable within 30 days

Collectabity of trade recewvables 1s reviewed on an ongoing basis Debts which are known to be
uncollectible are wniten off A prowision for doubtful receivables 1s established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal terms of
recewvables The amount of the provision 1s the difference between the asset's carrying value amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate The amount of
the provision 1s recogrised i the income statement  Cash flows relating to short term receivables are not
discounted if the effect of discounting 1s immatenal
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g) Share Based Payments

The costs for share based incentives in respect of shares in the Company granted for services to
subsidiary companies 1s treated as an increase tn investment with the corresponding credit taken directly
to reserves

2 Investments
2007
£000
Investment in Novera Energy Limited (100%) 68,126
Capital contnbution in share based payments 180
68,306

Novera Energy Limited 1n incorporated in Australia It 1s a intermediate holding company

3 Trade and other receivables
2007
£7000
Intercompany receivable 56
56

The above balance Is not secured and is required to be settled in cash No guarantees have been received
in respect of this balance No bad debt provision has been made against the above balance and the bad
and doubtful debt expense in the year in respect of this balance was £nil

4 Called up share capital & Reserves

Number of Ordinary Merger
Shares Shares Reserve 2007
00¢ £'000 £'000 £'000
At 15 March 2007 - - - -
Acguisition of Novera Energy 123,958 6,198 61,928 68,126
Limited
Exercise of options 100 5 51 56
Al 31 December 2007 124,058 6,203 61,979 68,182

The total number of authonsed ordinary shares 1s 200 0 miflicn and 1ssued 1s 124 1 million shares with a
par value of £0 05 per share All issued shares are fully paid

On 29 May 2007 the Company acquired the entire contributed equity of Novera Energy Limited in
accordance with Companies Act 1985 the difference between the nominal value of the shares issued and
contnbuted equity of Novera Energy Limited has been credrted to the merger reserve

5 Other Reserves

2007
£'000
At 15 March 2007 -
Movement in reserves 180
At 31 December 2007 180

Other reserves relates to share based payments
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6 Directors
2007
£'000
Total remuneration 385
Pension 3
3gs
Highest paid director remuneration 110
Highest paid director pension -
110

None of the directors have any defined benefit pension obligations
The fees for the Directors have been bome by the Group

7 Audit Fees

The audit fees for the Company have been borne by the Group Group audit fees for the year ended 31
December 2007 were £112,000 and non audit fees were £30,000
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